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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Mayor and Members 
of the City Council 

CITY OF SILVERTON 
Silverton, Oregon 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of CITY OF SILVERTON as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City 's basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibili ty 
is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit t o 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are f ree of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund , and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the CITY OF SILVERTON, as of June 30, 2012, the respective changes 
in financial position, cash flows, where applicable, thereof, and the respective budgeta ry comparisons for the 
General and Street Funds, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 27, 2012 on 
our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued) 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages a through f be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do 
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City's financial statements as a whole. The combining and individual fund statements and 
schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial 
statements. The combining and individual fund statements and schedules are the responsibility of management 
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America . In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Boldt, Carlisle & Smith, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 
Salem, Oregon 

November. 27~201 ~/ _./ 
~-//~> 

By: .• /;; / -~~< 
_;ifr'Od~~genheimer 

I/ ,_.,. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

This discussion and analysis presents the highlights of financial activities and financ ial posi!Ion for the City of 
Silverton. The analysis focuses on significant financial issues, major financial activities and resulting changes in 
financial position, budget changes and variances from the budget, and specific issues related to funds and the 
economic factors affecting the City. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) focuses on current year activities and resulting changes. Please 
read it in conjunction with the City's financial statements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The City's assets exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2012 by $42, 112,660 (net assets). Of this amount, $25,355,357 
was invested in capital assets; $9,345,880 was restricted for specific purposes resulting in unrestricted assets of 
$7,4 11 ,423 . 

The City's total net assets increased by $805, 196 (or 1.9%), which was due primarily to the increase of net assets 
invested in capital assets section in governmental activities. 

The City's business-type funds had an increase in net assets of $195,853, which is primarily due to the increase in 
current and other assets. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The City 's Annual Financial Report consists of several sections. Taken together they prov ide a Comprehensive 
Financial Report of the City. The components of the report include the following: 

Management's Discussion and Analysis This section of the report provides financial highlights, overview and 
economic factors affecting the City. 

Basic Financial Statements They include a statement of net assets, a statement of activities, fund financial 
statements and the notes to the financial statements. 

The statements of net assets and activities focus on an entity-wide presentation using the accrual basis of accounting 
and provide both long-term and short-term information about the City's fmancial status. The Governmental 
activities include most of the City's basic services such as police, street maintenance and improvement, community 
planning and governance . The Business-type activities include the operation of the City' s sewer and water utilities. 

Fund financial statements focus separately on major governmental funds and proprietary funds. Governmental Fund 
Statements follow the more traditional presentation of financial statements. The City's major governmental funds 
are presented in their own columns and the remaining funds are combined into a column titled "Other Governmental 
Funds." Budgetary comparison statements are presented for the General Fund and the Community Development 
Block Grant Housing Rehabi litation Fund. 

Statements for the City's proprietary funds follow the governmental funds and include net assets; revenues, 
expenses and changes in fund net assets; and cash fl ows. 

The notes to the financ ial statements provide additional disclosures required by governmental accounting standards 
and provide information to assist the reader in understanding the City's financial condition. 
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Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules. Readers wanting additional information about other 
major funds not presented in the basic financial statements and non-major funds can find it in th is section. Included 
within this section are: 

• Combi ning statements of other governmental funds, which are classified as non-major. These statements 
include balance sheets and statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances. 

• Budgetary comparisons. Budgetary information for all funds, except General Fund and Community 
Deve lopment Block Grant Housing Rehabilitation Fund, wh ich are presented within the bas ic financial 
statements, are presented here. 

• Combining statements of other proprietaty funds which are classified as non-major. These statements 
include balance sheets, statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net assets, and cash flows. 

Audit comments and disclosures requ ired by state regulations. These are supplemental communications on the 
city's compliance and internal controls as required by Oregon State Statutes. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS 

As mentioned earlier, the City 's net assets as of June 30, 20 12 are $42, 11 2,660. The largest portion of net assets is 
comprised of the City's investment in capi tal assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment and public in frastructure); less 
any related debt outstanding used to acquire those assets. The City uses capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
therefore, these assets are not available for future spending. The resources to repay the related debt is not provided 
by capital assets, but wi ll be provided from other sources such as charges for services. 

NET ASSETS 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 

2012 201 I 2012 201 I 

Cun·ent and other assets $1 1,205,374 $ 11 ,964,770 $ 8, 199,682 $ 4,288,383 

Capital assets. net 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Long-tenn liabi lities 

Other li abi lities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 

Invested in capital assets, 

11.825,767 I 1.560.584 

23,03 1,14 I 23.525.354 

4,677,698 

382,693 

5,060,391 

5, I 77,033 

986 914 

6, 163,947 

net of related debt 8,400,333 7,656, 720 

Restricted 3,880,083 3,872,398 

Unrestricted 5,690.334 5.832.289 

Total net assets $ )7 970 750 .l.J.1.36 1.407 

30,231.502 

38,43 1, 184 

13,839,869 

449 405 

14,289,274 

16,955,024 

5,465,797 

1.72 1.089 

$24 )41 910 

30,163.356 

34,45 1.739 

10, 165,437 

340 245 

I 0,505,682 

20,554,783 

2, 168,165 

1.223 ,1 09 

$ 23 946 057 

2012 

$ I 9,405,056 

42,057,269 

61.462,325 

I 8,5 I 7,567 

832.098 

I 9.349.665 

25,355,357 

9,345,880 

7,4 11.423 

,..U2. )) 2.660 

Totals 

201 I 

$ 16,253, 153 

4 1.723.940 

57.977.093 

15,342,470 

I 327 159 

I 6,669,629 

28,2 I 1,503 

6,040,563 

7.055,398 

$4 1 307 464 

The unrestricted net assets of governmental activities increased by $356,025, which is primari ly due to an increase 
in cash and rece ivables. 
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The governmental activities revenue comes primarily from property taxes, charges for services and various grants 
and contributions. The city's governmental expenses cover a wide variety of services, with general government, 
public safety and streets accounting for most of these expenses. 

City of Silverton 
Governmental Activities Revenue 

Other grants and 

contributions 
Other 
3.3% 

Property taxes 
53.0% 

services 
17% 

Other taxes 
13.2% 

Property taxes are the City's primary source of revenue comprising 53% of the City's governmental revenue. The 
City's permanent tax rate is $3.6678 per $1,000 of assessed value. Additional taxes are levied, for the repayment of 
bonded indebtedness. The next largest revenue source is fi·om other taxes, which is for transient taxes and franchise 
fees. 

recreation 
9% 

Highways and 
streets 

8% 

City of Silverton 
Governmental Activities 

Functional Expenses 

Public safety 
42% 

General 
overnment 

37% 

The primary expenses for governmental acti vities are public safety at 42% and general government activities at 
37%. Public safety exceeds general government expenses by$ 279,409. 
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Net assets of the governmental act ivities increased by$ 609,343, or 3.5%. Net assets of the City's business-type 
activities increased by $195,853 or 0.82%. Key elements of these changes are as follows: 

Revenues 

Program: 

Govemmental Activities 

2012 20 11 

Business-type Activities Totals 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

Charges for services $ 436,017 $ 

13,598 

348,537 

476,191 $ 3,954,845 $ 3,882, 109 $ 4,390,862 $ 4,358,300 

Operating grants and contributions 

Capi tal grants and contributions 

General: 

Property taxes 

Other taxes 

Other grants and contributions 

Other 

Total revenues 

Expenses 

General govemment 

Publ ic safety 

Highways and streets 

Culture and recreation 

Interest on long-tenn obligations 

Sewer 

Water 

Total expenses 

Change in net assets before transfers 

Transfers 

Increase in net assets 

Net assets - beginning 

Net assets - ending 

Governmental Activities 

2,804,200 

696,8 17 

719,358 

182,197 

5,200,724 

1,942,676 

2,222,085 

420,059 

472,033 

183,480 

5,240,333 

(39,609) 

648,952 

609,343 

17,361,407 

50,282 13,598 50,282 

465,328 

2,762,936 

678,504 

667,506 

193,135 

5,293,882 

2, I 09,615 

2, 157,058 

483,7 14 

480,418 

212,15 1 

5,442,956 

( 149,074) 

829,359 

680,285 

16,681' 122 

96,448 

49,697 

4,100,990 

2,020,781 

I ,235,404 

3,256, 185 

844,805 

(648,952) 

195,853 

23,946,057 

90,855 

28, 198 

4,001,162 

1,962,962 

1,190,762 

3, 153,724 

847,438 

(829,359) 

18,079 

23,927,978 

444,985 

2,804,200 

696,817 

719,358 

231,894 

9,301,7 14 

1,942,676 

2,222,085 

420,059 

472,033 

183,480 

2,020,781 

1,235,404 

8,496,518 

805,196 

805,196 

41,307,464 

556,183 

2,762,936 

678,504 

667,506 

221,333 

9,295,044 

2,109,615 

2,157,058 

483,7 14 

480,418 

212,151 

1,962,962 

1, 190,762 

8,596,680 

698,364 

698,364 

40,609, I 00 

$ 17,970,750 $ 17,36 1,407 $ 24, 141 ,910 $ 23,946,057 $ 42,112,660 $ 41,307,464 

The change in net assets for governmental activities for 2012 was an increase of$ 609,343. A large part of the 
change is due to the decrease in general government expenditures. 

Business-type Activi ties 

The small increase in net assets is from a change in the transfers being reduced and a slight increase in total 
revenues. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYS IS OF FUNDS 

As of June 30, 20 12, the City's governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $6,628,319, which is a 
decrease of $92,816 from June 30, 20 II. The decrease is a small change and most fund balances remained stable. 

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. As of June 30, 2012, the fund balance for the General 
Fund is $2,414,389, which is an increase of$ 77,389 from June 30,2011. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as presented in the government-wide statements of net assets 
and activities, but in more detail. The proprietary fund's net assets amounted to $24,25 1,130 as of June 30, 2012, 
which is an increase of$ 2 11 ,491 from June 30, 20 II. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

There were ten budget transfer reso lutions and one supplemental budget resolution adopted by City Council during 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The General Fund budget was changed with contingency appropriations 
transferred to public works in the amount of $26,500 and transfers out in the amount of $4 1,750. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

As of June 30, 2012, the City had invested $59,373,361 in capital assets of its governmental and business-type 
activities. This investment includes land and land improvements, buildings, equipment and public infrastructure of 
roads and bridges. The investment in governmental activities capital assets increased by $ 584,906, and business­
type activities increased by $836,69 1. Significant additions during the year ended June 30, 2012 in governmental 
activit ies was the related to City Hall water line replacement, sidewalk improvements, police vehicle and new shop 
addition and improvement. 

Addi tional information regarding the City's capital assets may be found in note 4 of the financial statements. 

The governmental long-term principal debt outstanding as of June 30, 2012 was $4,677,698 and business-type 
princ ipal debt was $13,839,869. 

A summary of the City's princ ipal long-term debt outstanding is as follows: 

General Obligation refunding Bond series 20 I 0 $ 
General Obligation Bonds - Pool 
Pension Obligation Bond 
Sewer Revenue Bonds payable to Bank ofNew York 
Sewer LOCAP Rev Bonds payable to Bank ofNew York 
Water Revenue Bond payable to USDA 
Notes payable to Oregon Economic and 

Community Development Department 
Notes payable to West Coast Bank - JJWF Lid 
Urban Renewal Loan to School District 
Compensated absences 

925,000 
165,000 

1,572,679 
7,620,000 
3,955,000 
1,701,478 

986,763 
245,343 

1,103,328 
242,976 

Additional information pertaining to the City's long-term debt may be found in Note 7 of the financial statements. 

ECONOM IC FACTORS 

During the 2012, fiscal year and continuing into the 2013 fiscal year the City, as well as citizens have continued to 
see decreasing property values. The impact of foreclosures has created a larger impact on property tax revenues, as 
property values have been lowered by an even larger amount. This has an impact on the City property tax dollars, 
wh ich are based on either the real market value or the assessed value, whichever is lower. 

New construction for residential housing is still down and is expected to remain low for the next 2-5 years. This has 
a major impact on plan ning revenues and system development charges. 
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FINANCIAL CONTACT 

The City's financial statements are intended to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors) 
with a genera l overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability. 

If yo u have questions about the financial report or need additional fi nancial information, please contact Kathleen 
Zaragoza, Finance Director at 306 S Water St, Silverton, OR 973 81. Financial information can also be found on the 
City of Silverton website. 

f 



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
June 30, 2012 

Governmental 

Activities 

ASSETS 
Cash and investments $ 8,043,467 
Receivables, net 2,336,011 
Inventories 16,065 
Prepaid pension costs, net 809,831 
Bond premium and issuance costs, net 
Capital assets: 

Land, improvements and constmction in progress 4,044,456 
Other capital assets, net 7,781,311 

TOTAL ASSETS 23,031, 141 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 250,614 
Accrued interest payable 36,070 
Deposits 75,496 
Internal balances 20,5 13 
Long-term liabi lities: 

Due within one year 644,930 
Due in more than one year 4,032,768 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,060,39 1 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 8,400,333 
Restricted for: 

Capital projects 1,287,119 
Debt service 2,034,613 
Other purposes 558,35 1 

Unrestricted 5,690,334 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 17,970,750 

See notes to basic financial statements 

Business-type 

Activities Totals 

$ 7,280,005 $ 15,323,472 
390,824 2,726,835 

90,550 106,615 
390,760 1,200,591 

47,543 47,543 

3,766,027 7,8 10,483 
26,465,475 34,246,786 

38,431,184 61,462,325 

354,684 605,298 
48,344 84,414 
66,890 142,386 

(20,513) 

473,854 1,118,784 
13,366,0 15 17,398,783 

14,289,274 19,349,665 

16,955,024 25,355,357 

5,343,941 6,63 1,060 
121,856 2,156,469 

558,351 
1,72 1,089 7,411,423 

$ 24, 141,910 $ 42,112,660 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Net (Expense) Revenue 
Program Revenue and Changes in Net Assets 

Operating Capital Grants 
Charges for Grants and and Governmental Business-type 

Functions/Programs Ex~enses Services Contributions 

Governmental activities: 
General government $ 1,942,676 $ 202, ! 50 $ 5,030 
Public safety 2,222,085 219,468 5,000 
Highways and streets 420,059 994 
Culture and recreation 472,033 13,405 3,568 
Interest on long-term obligation! 183,480 

TOTA L GOVERNMENTAL 
ACTIVITIES 

Business-type activities: 
Sewer 
Water 

TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE 
ACTIVITIES 

TOTALS 

5,240,333 436,017 

2,020,78 1 2,421,016 
1,235,404 I ,533,829 

3,256,185 3,954,845 

$ 8,496.5 18 $ 4,390,862 

General revenues: 
Taxes levied for: 

General purposes 
Debt service 

Miscellaneous taxes 
Franchise fees 

13,598 

$ 13,598 

Grants and contributions not restricted to 
specific programs 

Unrestricted investment earnings 
Miscellaneous 
Gain on sale of asset 

Transfers 

Contributions 

$ 48,834 

224,039 
75,664 

348,537 

53,541 
42,907 

96,448 

$ 444,985 

TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS 

Change in net assets 
Net assets - beginning 

Net assets - ending 

See notes to basic financial statements 2 

Activities Activities Totals 

$ (I ,686,662) $ (I ,686,662) 
(I ,997,617) (1,997,617) 

(195,026) (195,026) 
(379,396) (379,396) 
( 183,480) ( 183,480) 

(4,442,181) (4,442, 181) 

$ 453,776 453,776 
341,332 341 ,332 

795, 108 795, 108 

{4,442, 181 ) 795, I 08 (3 ,647,073) 

2,144,59 1 2,144,59 1 
659,609 659,609 

190,700 190,700 
506,117 506,1 17 

719,3 58 719,358 
63,98 1 36,835 100,8 16 

111 , 122 12,862 123,984 
7,094 7,094 

648,952 (648,952) 

5,05 1,524 (599,255) 4,452,269 

609,343 195,853 805, 196 
17,36 1,407 23,946,057 4 1,307,464 

$ 17,970.750 $ 24, 14 1,9 10 $ 42, 11 2,660 



ASSETS 
Cash and investments 
Recei vables 
Inventories 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued items 
Due to othe r funds 
Consumer de posits 
Defe rred revenue 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 

FUND BA LANCES 
Nonspc ndable 
Restricted 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 

TOTAL LIAB ILIT IES AND FUND BALANCES 

CITY OF SILVERTON 

BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

June 30, 2012 

General 

$ 2,482,549 $ 

947.493 
1, 11 6 

$ 3.431.158 $ 

$ 168,653 $ 

75,496 
772,313 

1.016,462 

1.11 6 

540,008 
1. 873,572 

2,414.696 

s 3,431 ,158 $ 

Street 

259,40 1 
44,652 
14.949 

319,002 

I 1,242 

11 ,242 

14,949 
292,8 11 

307.760 

319,002 

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because: 

Other 

Governmental 

Funds 

$ 3,838,983 
1,340,716 

$ 5.179,699 

$ 70,719 
20,5 13 

1, 182.604 

1,273,836 

3,2-14.431 
66 1,432 

3,905,863 

s 5,179,699 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds 
Prepaid pension costs are not financ ial resources avai lable for current period expenditures and. there fore. a re not 

reported in the funds. 
Other long-term assets are not avai lable for current period expenditures and, the refore, are deferred in the funds. 
Some liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the curre nt period and. therefore, are not reported 

in the funds. 
Internal se rvice funds are used by management to charge the cost of certain acti vi ties such as capital asset replacement 
and payment of extended leave benefits. The assets and liabiliti es of the internal serv ice funds a re inc luded in 
the governmenta l activities in the statement of net assets. 

NET ASS ETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVIT IES 

See notes to basic financial statements 3 

Totals 

$ 6,580,933 
2.332,861 

16.065 

s 8,929,859 

$ 250,614 
20,513 
75,496 

1,954,917 

2,301.540 

1,116 
3,259,380 
1,494,25 1 
1,873,572 

6,628,319 

11,825,767 

809,831 
1,954,917 

(4,7 13,768) 

1,465,684 

$ 17,970.750 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

STATEMENT 0 F REVENU ES, EXPENSES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNM ENTAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Other 

Governmental 

General Street Funds Totals 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 2, 190,555 $ $ 673,623 $ 2,864,178 

Transient tax 190,700 190,700 

Franchise fees 506, 117 506,117 

Licenses, pennits and fees 89,977 994 210,23 1 301,202 

Fines and forfei tures 2 14,950 2 14,950 

Assessments 149,238 149,238 

Intergovernmenta l 225 , 177 638,685 87,64 1 951,503 

Rentals 8,022 8,022 

Loan repayments 12,964 12,964 

Interest 28,062 1,479 22,687 52,228 

Miscellaneous 144,675 1,620 13,880 160,175 

TOTAL REVENUES 3,407,535 642,778 I ,360,964 5,4 11,277 

EXPENDITURES 
Cun·ent 

General government 1,509,998 358,047 1,868,045 

Public safety 2, 134,283 2,134,283 

Highways and streets 295,05 1 295,05 1 

Culture and recreation 367,764 367,764 

Debt service 732,325 732,325 

Capita l outlay 11 5,508 142, 178 327, 133 584,81 9 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,127,553 437,229 1,4 17,505 5,982,287 

Excess (de fic iency) of revenues over expenditures (720,018) 205,549 (56,54 1) (57 1,010) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Sale of capital assets 3,500 3,500 

Transfers in 1, 159,064 267,234 1,426,298 

Transfers out (365, 157) (20 1,686) (3 84,761) (95 1,604) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 797,407 (20 1,686) ( 11 7 ,527) 478, 194 

Net change in fund balances 77,389 3,863 (174,068) (92,8 16) 

Fund balances at beginning of year 2 ,337,307 303,897 4,079,93 1 6,72 1,135 

Fund balance at end of year $ 2,4 14,696 $ 307,760 $ 3,905,863 $ 6,628,3 19 

See notest to basic financial statements 
4 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES- TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
Statement of Activities are different because of the following 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expend itures while governmental 
activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life 
of the assets. The difference between those two amounts is: 

Capital outlay $ 
Depreciation 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial 
resources are not reported as revenues in the fu nds as follows: 

Taxes 
Special assessments 
Fines and forfeitu res 
Housing rehabilitation loans 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. 

Compensated absences 
Accrued inlt:rt:st 

Repayment of long-term obligations principal is an expenditure in the governmental 
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term obligations in the Statement of 
Net Assets. 

Governmental funds do not report amortization of the unfunded pension liabili ty 
as an expenditure, while the government-wide statements report the portion 
allocable to the current period only. 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of certain 
activiti es, such as major equipment replacement and extended leave payments, 
to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of internal serv ices funds, adjusted 
for interfund activity, is reported with governmental activities. 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITI ES 

See notes to basic financial statements 5 

584,819 
(343,104) 

(59,978) 
(147,73 1) 

(4,51 6) 
( 12,965) 

$ (92,816) 

241,7 15 

(225,190) 

2,009 
5,2 11 

497,326 

(50,615) 

231,703 

$ 609,343 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

GENERAL FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Yea r Ended June 30,2012 

Budcret 

Original Final Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 1,938,630 $ 1,938,630 $ 2,190,555 $ 25 1,925 
Franchise fees 445,000 445,000 506, 117 6 1, 11 7 
Licenses, permits and fees 70,200 70,200 89,977 19,777 
Fines and forfeitures 192,600 192,600 2 14,950 22,350 
Intergovernmental 3 14,375 3 14,375 379,977 65,602 
Rentals 8,000 8,000 8,022 22 
Interest 13,500 13,500 25,537 12,037 
Misce llaneous 59,800 59,800 144,675 84,875 

TOTAL REVENUES 3,042, I 05 3,042, 105 3,559,8 10 517,705 

EXPENDITURES 
City council 35,400 35,400 35,388 12 
City management 354,758 354,758 272,354 82,404 
Finance and court 354,934 354,934 346,416 8,518 
Police 2,403,507 2,403,507 2, 177,330 226, 177 
Community development 502,98 1 502,98 1 309,365 193,616 
Public works 795,064 82 1,564 708, 114 11 3,450 
Non-departmental 346,450 346,450 278,586 67,864 
Contingency and reserves 572,229 503,979 503,979 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,365,323 5,323,573 4, 127,553 1,196,020 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (2,323 ,2 18) (2,281 ,468) (567,743) 1,7 13,725 

OTHER F INANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Sale of capital assets 3,500 3,500 
Transfers in 1,083,535 1,083,535 1,059,064 (24,471) 
Transfers out (323 ,407) (365, 157) (365, 157) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 760, 128 7 18,378 697,407 (20,97 1) 

Net change in fund balance ( I ,563,090) ( I ,563,090) 129,664 1,692,754 
Fund balance at beginning of year 1,563,090 1,563,090 1,899,824 336,734 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 2,029,488 $ 2,029,488 

Reconcilia tio n to genera lly accepted accounting principles 
Repayment of interfund loan ( 154,800) 

Fund balance at end of year $ 1,874,688 

See notes to basic financial statements 6 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

STREET - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Original 
and Final 
Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Licenses, permits and fees $ $ 994 $ 994 
Intergovernmental 515,000 638,685 123,685 
Interest 625 1,479 854 
Miscellaneous 350 1,620 1,270 

TOTAL REVENUES 515,975 642,778 126,803 

EXPENDITURES 
Personal services 213,987 213,314 673 
Materials and services 99,330 81,737 17,593 
Capital outlay 151,200 142,178 9,022 
Contingency 74,518 74,518 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 539,035 437,229 101,806 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (23,060) 205,549 228,609 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (201,686) (201,686) 

Net change in fund balance (224,746) 3,863 228,609 
Fund balance at beginning of year 224,746 303,897 79,151 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 307,760 $ 307,760 

See notes to basic finall cial statements 7 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

June 30, 2012 

Governmental 

Ente rise Activities 

WWTP O ther 

Digester Enterprise Internal 

Sewer Water Project Funds Totals Service 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash and investments s 295,034 s 602,729 s 4,399, 133 s I ,983, I 09 s 7,280,005 s I ,462.534 
Receivables, net 244,506 146,318 390,824 3, 150 
Due from other funds 20,5 13 20,513 
Inventories 7,55 1 82,999 90,550 

Total current assets 547,091 832,046 4,399, 133 2,003 ,622 7,781,892 1,465,684 

Bond premium and issuance costs, net 4 7,543 47,543 
Capital assets 

Land and construction in progress 3,582,60 I 183,426 3,766,027 
Other capital assets, net 18,318,669 8,146,806 26,465,475 

TOTAL ASS ETS 22,495.904 9, 162.278 4,399, 133 2.003.622 38,060.937 I ,465,684 

LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued items 87,224 74,077 193.383 354.684 
Consumer deposits 66,890 66,890 
Accrued inte rest payable 38,828 6,8 18 45,646 
Accumulated unpaid vacation 36,101 30,008 66,109 
Long-tenn obligations due within one year 360.000 38.903 398,903 

Total current liabilities 522, 153 21 6,696 193,383 932,232 

Long-tenn obligations due in more than one year 11.2 15,000 I ,662,575 12,877,575 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 11.737, 153 1.879,271 193.383 13,809.807 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 10,326,270 6.628.754 16,955,024 
Restricted for: 

Capital projects 4,205,750 I, 138, 191 5,343,941 
Debt service 121,856 12 1,856 

Unrestricted 432,48 1 532,397 865.431 1,830,309 1,465,684 

TOTAL NET ASSETS s 10.758.751 s 7.283,007 s 4,205.750 s 2.003.622 24,25 1,130 s I ,465,684 

Prepaid pension costs allocable to business-type activities in the statement of net assets 390,760 
Long-tenn obligations issued to prepay the PERS unfunded actuaria l liability are allocable 

to business-type activitcs in the statement of net assets (499,980) 

Net assets of business-type activitcs s 24,141,910 

S ee notes to basic financial statements 8 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Governmental 
Enter rise Activities 

WWTP Other 
Digester Enterprise Internal 

Sewer Water Project Funds Totals Service 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services $ 2,42 1,0 16 $ 1,533,829 $ - $ - $ 3,954,845 $ 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Personal services 645,528 497,801 I, 143,329 
Materials and services 436,657 339,400 2,128 778, 185 
Depreciation 485,585 282,960 768,545 

Total operating expenses 1,567,770 1,120,161 2,128 2,690,059 

Operating income (loss) 853,246 413,668 (2, 128) 1,264,786 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
System development charges 96,448 96,448 
Interest 5,056 2,977 20,618 8,184 36,835 7,544 
Miscellaneous 9,623 2,339 900 12,862 
Amortization (2,502) (2,502) 
Interest (417,066) (84,613) (50 1,679) 

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (404,889) (79,297) 21,518 104,632 (358,036) 11,138 

income before transfers 448,357 334,371 21,518 102,504 906,750 11,138 

TRANSFERS 
Transfers in 757,1 75 25,259 4,004,955 863,060 5,650,449 220,565 
Transfers out (5,052,434) (464,300) (757,175) (71,799) (6,345,708) (23,468) 

Total transfers ( 4,295,259) (439,04 1) 3,247,780 791,261 (695,259) 197,097 

Change in net assets (3,846,902) (I 04,670) 3,269,298 893,765 211,491 208,235 
Total net assets at beginning of year 14,605,653 7,387,677 936,452 1,109,857 I ,257,449 

Total net assets - ending $ 10,758,75 1 $ 7,283,007 $ 4,205, 750 $ 2,003,622 $ I ,465,684 

Amortization of prepaid pension costs related to enterprise funds (24,423) 
Adjustment to reflect the changes in the pension bond related to enterprise funds 8 785 

CHANGE rN NET ASSETS OF BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES $ 195,853 

See notes to basic financial statements 9 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

STATE~IE T OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

For th e Year Ended Ju ne 30,2012 

Governmental 

Enter rise Activities 

Other 
wwrP Enterprise Internal 

Sewer Water Digester Project Funds Totals Service 

CASII FLOWS I'ROi\'1 OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Rece1pts from customers $ 2,402,553 $ 1,521,277 $ $ $ 3,923 ,830 $ 

Payments to suppliers (394,745) (326,729) 128,106 (2,253) (595,62 1) 
Payments to employees ~637,880) (490, 184) ( 1, 128,064) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACT IVITIES 1,369,928 704,364 128,106 (2.253) 2,200, 145 

CASII FLOWS FROM NONCAP ITAL I'INA~CING r\ CTlVITIES 
Transfers in 842,547 842,547 220,565 
Transfers out ~1.047,479) ~464,300) (46,540) ~ 1,558.319) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITLES {1,047,479) (464 ,300) 796,007 (7 15,772) 220,565 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Issuance of long-term obligations 4,004,955 4,004,955 
System development charges received 96,448 96,448 
Other 9,623 2,339 900 12,862 
Sale of capital assets 3.594 
AcquisitiOn of capital assets {54,257) (757,175) (25,259) (836,691) (23,468) 
Increase m receivable related to sale (3,150) 
Pnnc1pal paid on long-term obligations (350,000) (37,095) (387,095) 
Interest paid on long-term obligations ( 445,459) (84,761) (530,220) 

NET CAS H PROV IDED BY (USED IN) CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCrNG ACTIVITLES (840,093) ( 11 9,5 17) 3,248,680 71, 189 2,360,259 (23,024) 

CAS II FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTlVITIES 
Interest on investments 5,056 2,977 20,6 18 8, 184 36,835 7,544 

Net increase (decrease) in cash (5 12,588) 123,524 3,397,404 873,127 3,881,467 205,085 
Cash - beginning of year 807,622 479,205 1,001,729 1,109,982 3,398,538 1,257,449 

Cash -end of year $ 295,034 $ 602,729 $ 4,399,1 33 $ 1,983, 109 $ 7,280,005 $ 1,462,534 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) 
OI' ERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income {loss) $ 853,246 $ 413,668 $ $ (2,128) $ 1,264,786 $ 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 

to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 
Depreciation 485,585 282,960 768,545 
Decrease (increase) in assets 

Receivables, net (1 8,463) (9,763) (28,226) 
Inventories 7,308 14,206 2 1,5 14 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued items 34,604 ( 1,535) 128,106 ( 125) 161,050 
Consumer deposits (2,789) (2,789) 
Accumulated un paid vacation 7,648 7,617 15,265 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED rN) 
OPERATING ACTIVITfES $ 1,369,928 $ 704,364 $ 128, 106 $ (2.253~ $ 2,200,145 $ 

SU PPLEMENTAL DISCLOSU RE OF NON-CASH 
TRA SACT IONS 

Transfers in 757, 175 25,259 4,004,955 20,513 4,807,902 
Transfers out {4.004,955) (757,1 75) {25,259) (4,787,3 89) 

Total non-cash transactions $ (3.247,780~ $ 25,259 $ 3,247,780 $ ~4.746) $ 20,513 $ 

The Sewer Debt Reserve Fund received non-cash transfers of $20,5 13 from the Transient Tax Fund. 

S ee notes to basic filum cia! statements 
10 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2012 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies 

A. Financial reporting entity 

The CITY OF SILVERTON (City) was organized under the general laws of the State of Oregon. 
Control of the City is vested in its Mayor and Council Members who are elected to office by 
voters within the City. Administrative functions are delegated to individuals who report to and are 
responsible to the Mayor and Council. The chief administrative officer is the City Manager. 

The accompanying financial statements present all activities, funds and the component unit for 
which the City is considered to be financially accountable. The criteria used in making this 
determination includes appointment of a voting majority, imposition of will, financial benefit or 
burden on the primary government, and fiscal dependency on the primary government. 

The City Council serves as the governing board of the Silverton Urban Renewal Agency. 
Therefore, the accounts of the agency are included in the financial statements of the City. 

Complete financial statements for the Silverton Urban Renewal Agency may be obtained from the 
City's finance department. 

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City (the primary 
government) and its component unit. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been 
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes 
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely 
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Amounts reported as program revenues include 
1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating 
grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. 
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. 
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as 
general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds, even 
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the 
fund financial statements. 

11 



NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial 
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues 
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon 
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

The government-wide statements and proprietary funds have applied all Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (F ASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions 
and Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting Procedure issued on or 
before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The City has elected to not 
follow F ASB pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989. 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the functions of the City, 
the elimination of which would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the 
various functions concerned. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The 
principal operating revenues are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses 
for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported 
as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, when both restricted and 
unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, 
then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are 
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Significant revenues, which are 
susceptible to accrual under the modified accrual basis of accounting, include property taxes and 
federal and state grants. Other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available when 
received by the City. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under 
accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

12 



NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation (continued) 

In the governmental fund financial statements, when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for 
which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, the City, considers restricted 
funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or 
unassigned fund balances are available, the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of 
committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the City 
Council has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions. 

The bases of accounting described above are in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

• General - accounts for the financial resources of the City that are not accounted for in any 
other fund. Principal sources of revenue are property taxes, franchise fees, and state shared 
revenues. Expenditures are primarily for general government operations, public safety 
(police), and culture and recreation. With the implementation of GASB 54, the General 
Operating Reserve Fund has been combined with the General Fund for financial reporting 
purposes. 

• Street - revenue from taxes on motor vehicle fuel use for street construction and 
maintenance. 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

• Sewer- accounts for the operation of the City's sewer system. 

• Water - accounts for the operation of the City's water system. 

• WWTP Digester Program - accounts for the construction of wastewater treatment plant 
digester construction. 

The City also includes the following fund types as other governmental funds and other enterprise 
funds: 

Special revenue - account for revenue derived from specific taxes or other revenue sources, 
which are legally restricted to finance particular functions or activities. When a special 
revenue fund is not an operating fund, transfers are made from the special revenue fund to the 
operating fund authorized to make expenditures. 

Debt service - account for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and 
interest on long-term debt of governmental funds. 

Capital projects - account for expenditures on major construction projects or equipment 
acquisition. The principal sources of revenues are proceeds from long-term obligations issued 
to finance capital acquisitions and improvements. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation (continued) 

Entetprise - accounts for the operations of predominantly self-supporting activities. Enterprise 
funds account for services rendered to the public on a user charge basis. 

Internal service - accounts for services provided to other depattments or agencies of the 
government, or to other gov~rnments, on a cost reimbursement basis. The principal source of 
revenues is interfund charges and transfers. 

D. Budget policies and budgetary control 

Generally, Oregon Local Budget Law requires annual budgets be adopted for all funds except 
agency funds. The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for all budgets. All annual 
appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. 

The City begins its budgeting process by appointing Budget Committee members in the fall of 
each year. Budget recommendations are developed by management through early spring, with the 
Budget Committee meeting and approving the budget document in late spring. Public notices of 
the budget hearing are generally published in May or June and the hearing is held in June. The 
City Council adopts the budget, makes appropriations, and declares the tax levy no later than June 
30. Expenditure appropriations may not be legally over-expended, except in the case of grant 
receipts and bond sale proceeds which could not be reasonably estimated at the time the budget 
was adopted. 

The resolution authorizing appropriations for each fund sets the level at which expenditures 
cannot legally exceed appropriations. The City established the levels of budgetary control at the 
personal services, materials and services, capital outlay, operating contingencies, debt service, and 
all other requirement levels for all funds. 

E. Use of estimates 

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions regarding certain types of assets, 
liabilities, revenues, and expenses. Such estimates primarily relate to unsettled transactions and 
events as of the date of the financial statements. Accordingly, upon settlement, actual results may 
differ from estimated amounts. 

F. Cash and cash equivalents 

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, checking, 
savings and money market accounts, and any highly-liquid debt instruments purchased with a 
maturity ofthree months or less. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

G. User charges and fines receivable 

User charges and fines receivable are reported at the amount management expects to collect on 
balances outstanding at year-end. Management closely monitors outstanding balances and writes 
off, as of year-end, all balances that have not been collected by the time the financial statements 
are issued. 

H. Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market. Inventories 
consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. 

I. Capital assets 

Capital assets are recorded in the Statement of Net Assets at cost or estimated historical cost if 
purchased or constructed. Donated items are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of 
donation. The City records capital assets for items with original cost, or estimated fair value if 
donated, of $5,000 or more and an expected economic useful life of 3 years or more. 

Public domain (infrastructure) capital assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, storm sewers, and 
other assets that are immovable and of value to the City) that have been acquired or significantly 
reconstructed since 1980 have been capitalized at estimated historical cost. 

Upon disposal of capital assets, the accounts are relieved of the related costs and accumulated 
depreciation, and resulting gains or losses are reflected in the change in net assets. Depreciation 
taken on contributed capital assets is recorded as an expense of operations and charged to retained 
earmngs. 

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful 
lives with prorated depreciation in the year of acquisition and prorated depreciation in the year of 
disposal. 

Assets Years 

Buildings and improvements 50 

Plant in service 50 

Machinery and equipment 10 

Infrastructure 60 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

J. Long-tenn obligations 

Long-tenn obligations consist of notes, bonds, and compensated absences. 

Long-tenn obligations expected to be repaid from Proprietary Funds are accounted for in the 
business-type activities and Proprietary Funds. 

Long-tenn obligations expected to be repaid from Governmental Funds are accounted for in the 
governmental activities. 

K. Compensated absences - sick leave 

The City has a policy which permits employees to earn sick leave at the rate of one day per month 
with no limit on accumulation. 

L. Equity classification 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Reporting 
In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements equity is classified as net assets 
and displayed in three components: 

ln. vested in capital assets, n.et of related debt - Consists of capital assets including restricted 
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
constmction, or improvements of those assets. 

Restricted - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by (1) external 
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments; 
or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted- All other net assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "invested 
in capital assets, net of related debt." 

Governmental Fund Type Fund Balance Reporting 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 54, Fund 
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB 54). This Statement defines 
the different fund balance categories that a governmental entity must use for financial reporting 
purposes in its governmental fund types. 

GASB 54 requires governmental type fund balance amounts to be properly reported within one of 
the fund balance categories list below: 

Non-spendable - Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable 
form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted - Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by 
creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

L. Equity classification (continued) 

Committed - Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal 
action of the City Council. The City Council is the highest level of decision making authority 
for the City. Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through 
ordinances or resolutions approved by the City Council. 

Assigned - Amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed 
but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. The City Council has granted authority 
to the Administrative Services Director to assign fund balance amounts. 

Unassigned- the residual classification for the government's general fund and includes all 
spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. Additionally, other funds may 
report negative unassigned fund balance in certain circumstances. 

M. Risk management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to errors and omissions, automobile, damage 
to and destruction of assets, bodily injury, and worker's compensation for which the City carries 
commercial insurance. There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the 
prior year and settled claims have not reached the level of commercial coverage in any of the 
past three fiscal years. 

2. Deposits and investments 

The City maintains a pool of cash and investments that are available for use by all funds. Each 
fund's portion of this pool is displayed on the financial statements as cash and investments. 
Interest earned on pooled cash and investments is allocated to participating funds based upon their 
combined cash and investment balances. 

Investments, including amounts held in pooled cash and investments are stated at fair value. In 
accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 31, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, 
investments with a remaining maturity of more than one year, at the time of purchase are stated at 
fair value. Fair value is determined at the quoted market price, if available; otherwise the fair value 
is estimated based on the amount at which the investment could be exchanged in a current 
transaction between willing parties, other than a forced liquidation sale. Investments in the State of 
Oregon Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) are stated at fair value. 

The Oregon State Treasury administers the LGIP. The LGIP is an unrated, open-ended, no-load, 
diversified portfolio offered to any City, political subdivision or public corporation of the state who 
by law is made the custodian of, or has control of, any fund. The LGIP is commingled with the 
State's short-term funds. To provide regulatory oversight, the Oregon Legislature established the 
Oregon Short-Term Fund Board and LGIP investments are approved by the Oregon Investment 
Council. The fair value of the City's position in the LGIP is the same as the value of the pool 
shares. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

2. Deposits and investments (continued) 

Credit risk: Oregon statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. 
agencies, bankers' acceptances, repurchase agreements, commercial paper rated A-1 by Standard & 
Poor's Corporation or P-1 by Moody's Commercial Paper Record, and the state treasurer's investment 
pool. 

As of June 30, 2012, the City had the following investments: 

Maturities 

State Treasurer's Investment Pool N/A 

Fair 
Value 

$ 15.128.544 

Interest Rate Risk: The City does not have a formal policy that limits investment maturities as a means 
of managing its exposure to fair-value losses arising from increases in interest rates. 

Concentration of Credit Risk: The City does not have a formal policy that places a limit on the amount 
that may be invested in any one issuer. I 00 percent of the City' s investments are in the State 
Treasurer's Investment Pool. 

Custodial Credit Risk- Investments: This is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a counterparty, 
the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in the possession of an outside 
party. The City does not have a policy which limits the amount of investments that can be held by 
counterparties. 

Custodial Credit Risk- Deposits. This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits 
may not be returned. The Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) provides insurance for 
the City's deposits with financial institutions up to $250,000 each for the aggregate of all non­
interest bearing accounts and the aggregate of all interest bearing accounts at each institution. 
Deposits in excess of FDIC coverage with institutions participating in the Oregon Public Funds 
Collateralization Program are collateralized with securities held by the Federal Home Loan Bank of 
Seattle in the name of the institution. As of June 30, 2012, $3,888 of the City's bank balances were 
exposed to custodial risk. 

A. The City ' s deposits and investments at June 30, 2012 are as follows: 

Total investments $ 15,128,544 
Cash on hand 2,500 
Deposits with financial institutions 192,428 

Total deposits and investments $ 15,323,472 
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3. 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

2. Deposits and investments (continued) 

B. Cash and investments by fund: 

Governmental acti vities/funds 
General 
Street 
Other governmental 

Governmental funds 

Internal service 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type acti viti es/funds 
Sewer 
Water 
WWTP Digester Project 
Other enterprise 

Total business-type activities/funds 

Total cash and investments 

Receivables 

$ 2,482,549 
259,40 I 

3,838,983 

6,580,933 

1,462,534 

8,043,467 

295,034 
602,729 

4,399, 133 
1,983, 109 

7,280,005 

$ 15,323,472 

A. The City's receivables at June 30,2012 are shown below: 

Governmental Activities I Funds Business-type Activities I Funds 

General Street Other Totals Sewer Water Totals 

User charges $ $ $ $ $ 243,980 $ 140,031 $ 384,0 11 

Property assessments 513,795 51 3,795 

Property taxes 163,297 47,432 210,729 

County treasurer 17,029 1,2 17 18 ,246 

Accounts 123,415 44,652 76,343 244,41 0 900 7, 172 8,072 

Notes 701,929 70 I ,929 

Fines 43 ,752 43,752 

Loans 600,000 600,000 

Allowance for 

doubtfu l accounts (374) (885) (I ,259) 

$ 947,493 $ 44,652 $ 1,340,7 16 $ 2.332,86 1 $ 244,506 $ 146,3 18 $ 390,824 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

3. Receivables (continued) 

B. Property taxes rece ivable 

Current 
Prior 

1. Collection procedures 

Taxes are levied on July I and are payable in three installments due November 15, 
February 15 and May 15. Marion County bills and collects property taxes for the City. 

11. 2011-12 property tax transactions 

$ 

$ 

Balances 

July 1, 
2011 

-
226,944 

226,944 

$ 

$ 

2011-12 
Levy 

2,910,785 

2,910,785 

$ 

$ 

Net 
Adjust- Interest 
ments (Discounts) Collections 

(20,101) $ (71,672) $ 2,715, 149 
(19,009) II ,510 112,579 

(39, 110) $ (60,162) $ 2,827,728 

Prior year accural (7, 132) 
Current year accrual 43,582 

$ 2,864,178 

$ 

$ 

Balances 

June 30, 
2012 

103,863 
106,866 

210,729 

111. Ensuing year's levy 

The City's permanent tax rate is $3.6678 per $1,000 assessed value as limited by the 
Constitution of the State of Oregon. 

The Urban Renewal Agency will levy 100 percent of the amount of its authority under option 
one of ORS 457.435(2)(a) for the retirement of long-term obligations principal and interest 
without making a special levy in 2012-13. 

The tax rate limit of $10.00 per thousand of assessed value imposed by the Oregon 
Constitution is not expected to affect these levies. 

In addition, the City will levy $3 15,105 for payment of long-term debt principal and interest 
due in 2012-1 3. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

4. Capital assets 

A. Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30,2012 was as follows: 

Balances Balances 
June 30, 20 II Additions Deletions June 30, 2012 

Governmental Activities 
Capital assets not being depreciated 

Land $ 3,542,587 $ - $ - $ 3,542,587 
Right of way 479,624 479,624 
Construction in progress 1,500, 147 295,181 1,773,083 22,245 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 5,522,358 295,18 1 1,773,083 4 044 456 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Buildings and improvements 1,740,544 1,8 13,942 3,554,486 
Equipment 1,732,086 90,792 23 ,381 1,799,497 
Land improvements 2, 140,786 2,140,786 
Infrastructure 3,11 3,766 181 ,455 3,295,22 1 

Total capital assets being depreciated 8,727,182 2,086,189 23,381 10,789,990 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements 495,535 84,902 580,437 
Equipment 1,503,09 1 137,336 23,381 1,617,046 
Land improvements 250,183 250,183 
Infrastructure 440 147 120,866 561 ,0 13 

Total accumulated depreciation 2,688,956 343 I 04 23 381 3,008,679 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 6,038,226 1,743,085 7 781 311 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 11 ,560,584 $ 2 ,038,266 $ 1,773,083 $ II ,825,767 

Business-type Activities 
Capital assets not being depreciated 

Land $ 2,254,610 $ - $ - $ 2 ,254,610 
Construction in progress 728 983 782 434 I 511 417 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,983,593 782 434 3,766,027 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Water and sewer lines 15,3 10,489 15,3 10,489 
Buildings and improvements 6,704,893 3,205 6,708,098 
Plant and equipment 18,455,986 51,052 18,507,038 
Land improvements 247,263 247 ,263 

Total capital assets being depreciated 40,718,63 1 54 257 40,772,888 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Water and sewer lines 6,082,556 254,594 6,337,150 
Buildings and improvements 1,750,996 134,389 1,885 ,3 85 
Plant and equipment 5,534,149 374,127 5,908,276 
Land improvements 17 1 167 5 435 176,602 

Total accum ulated depreciation 13,538,868 768 545 14,307,4 13 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 27, 179,763 (714,288} 26,465,475 

Business-type activities capita l assets, net $ 30,163,356 $ 68, 146 $ - $ 30,231,502 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

4. Capital assets (continued) 

B. Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows: 

Governmental activities 

General government $ 61,955 

Public safety 57,138 

Highways and streets 12 1,945 

Culture and recreation 102,066 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 343 ,104 

Business-tvpe activities 

Sewer $ 485,585 

Water 282,960 

Total depreciation expense- business-type activities $ 768,545 

5. Deferred revenue 

Governmental Funds 

General Other Totals 

Loans $ 600,000 $ 700,128 $ 1,300,128 

Property taxes 128,561 38,405 166,966 

Property assessments 444,071 444,071 

Fines 43,752 43,752 

$ 772,313 $ 1,182,604 $ 1,954,917 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

6. Interfund transactions 

The interfund transfers during the year ended June 30, 2012 were as follows: 

Transfer from Transfer to Amount 

General Other Governmental $ 144,731 
General Internal Service 120,426 
General General 100,000 
Street General 178,578 
Street Other Governmenal 6,666 
Street Internal Service 16,442 
Other Governmental General 65,324 
Other Governmental Other Governmenal 77,723 
Other Governmental Other Enterprise 235,142 
Other Governmental Internal Service 6,572 
Sewer General 384,311 
Sewer Other Governmenal 2 1,887 
Sewer WWTP Digester 4,004,955 * 

Sewer Other Enterprise 627,9 18 
Sewer Internal Service 13,363 
Water General 384,31 1 
Water Other Governmenal 16,227 
Water Internal Service 63,762 
WWTP Digester Sewer 757, 175 * 

Other Enterprise General 46,540 
Other Enterprise Water 25,259 * 

Internal Serv ice Governmental Activities 23 ,468 * 

* Non-cash transfers 

In the adopted budget, the City anticipates making interfund transfers to move resources between funds 
to provide resources for specific expenditures that are not supported by other revenues. 

Non-cash transfers occur when a fund acquires capital assets which will be used in the operation of a 
different fund 's activities, issues long-term obligations which will be repaid out of a different fund's 
resources or pays principal on long-term obligations reported in a differen t fund. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

7. Long-term obligations 

A. Transactions for the govemmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2012 were as follows: 

Outstanding Outstanding Balances 
June 30, June 30, Due Within 

20 11 Additions Reductions 20 12 One Year 

General Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 2010 -
original issue $ 1, 175,000,due over 7 years, in semi-
annual installments of interest at 3.00 percent payable on 
June 1 and December 1 with principal payments annually 
June 

Principal $ 1,000,000 $ - $ 75,000 $ 925,000 $ 80,000 

Interest 5,9 18 26,287 30,000 2,205 

1,005,9 18 26,287 105,000 927,205 

General Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 2003 -
original issue $ 1 ,200,000,due over 10 years, in semi-
annual installments of interest at 3.75 percent payable on 
June 1 and December 1 with principal payments annually 
June 

Principal 320,000 155,000 165,000 165,000 

Interest 888 11 ,604 12,000 492 

320,888 11 ,604 167,000 165,492 
Pension Obligation Bonds, original issue of$ 1,957,495, 
due over 27 years in semi-annual installments payable on 
June 1 and December 1 including variable interest rates 
at 2 to 7.3 6 percent with principal payments annually 
June 1 

Principal I ,600,313 27,634 1,572,679 27,962 
Interest 8,68 1 11 8,663 118,8 13 8,531 

l ,608 ,994 11 8,663 146,447 1,58 1,210 
Allocable to business-type activities 

Principal (506 ,020) (8,738) (497,282) (8,842) 

Interest (2,746) (37,521) (37 ,569) (2,698) 

1,100,228 81,142 I 00,140 1,081 ,230 19,120 

Note payable - [WEVP LID] Oregon Economic 
Development Department (OEDD), original issue of 
$ 1,275,000, due over 25 years in various annual 
installments payable on December I , including interest at 
3 to 4.625 percent 

Principal 1,028,451 41,688 986,763 41 ,926 

Interest 25 ,95 1 44, 105 44,9 19 25, 137 

I ,054,402 44,105 86,607 1,011,900 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

7. Long-term obligations (continued) 

A. Transactions for the govetnmental activities for the year ended June 30, 20 12 were as follows 
(continued): 

Outstanding Outstanding Balances 
June 30, June 30, Due Within 

20 1 I Additions Reductions 20 12 One Year 

Note payable- [JJ\VF LID] West Coast Bank, original 
issue of$459,221, due over 10 years in semi annual 
installments payable on May 25 and November 25, 
including interest at 4.25 percent. 

Principal $ 328,22 I $ $ 82,878 $ 245,343 $ 42,534 

Interest 13,619 13 ,6 19 

328,221 13,619 96,497 245,343 
Note payable - [URA] Silver Falls School District 41, 
original issue of $1,255 ,000, due over 14 years in 
various annual installments payable on February 15, 
including interest at the rate of the prevailing rate of the 
local Government Investment Pool on December 3 1 of 
each year. 

Principal 1,057,2 16 114,714 942,502 95,287 

Interest 2,230 5,109 5,286 2,053 

1,059,446 5, 109 120,000 944,555 
Note payable- [URA] Silver Falls School District 41, 
original issue of$ 195,000, due over II years in various 
annual installments payable on February 15, including 
interest at the rate of the prevailing rate of the local 
Governn1ent Investment Pool on December 3 1 of each 
year. 

Principal 169,976 9,150 160,826 21,462 

Interest 359 84 1 850 350 

170,335 886 10,045 16 1,176 

Accumulated unpaid vacation 178,876 176,867 178,876 I 76,867 176,867 

Total governmental activities long-term obligations 5,218,3 14 359,6 I 9 864, I 65 4 ,7 13,768 $ 644,930 

Accrued interest payable 4 1,28 1 182,752 187,963 36,070 

Principal $ 5,177,033 $ 176,867 $ 676,202 $4,677 ,698 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

7. Long-term obligations (continued) 

B. Transactions fo r the business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2012 were as follows: 

Outstanding Outstanding Balances 

July I, June 30, Due Within 
20 11 Additions Reductions 2012 One Year 

Water Revenue Bond payable to U.S. 
Department of Agriculture (USDA), Rural 

Development, original issue of$2, 127,000, due 
in annual installments over 40 years of 

$12 1,856 payable on May 31 including interest 
at 4.875 percent, secured by net water system 

revenues. 

Principal $ 1,738,573 $ $ 37,095 $ I ,701 ,478 $ 38,903 
Interest 6,966 84,613 84,76I 6,8 18 

1,745,539 84,61 3 12 1,856 I ,708,296 

Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds payable to 

Bank ofNY, original issue of$8, 170,000 due 

over 25 years, in semi-annual installments 
payable on June I and December I including 

variable interest rates at 3.00% to 4.625%, 

average coupon rate of 4.33%, with principal 
payments annua lly in June, secured by net 
sewer system revenues. 

Principal 7,870,000 250,000 7,620,000 265,000 
Interest 67,221 285, 153 3 19,831 32,543 

7,937,22 1 285,153 569,83 1 7,652,543 

Loca l Oregon Capital Assets Program Bonds 
payable to Bank of NY, original issue of 

$4,055,000 due over 20 years, annua l 

installments payable on June I including 

variable interest rates at 2 .00% to 4.60%. 

Principal 4,055,000 100,000 3,955,000 95,000 
Interest 131,9 13 125,628 6,285 

4, 186,913 225,628 3,96 1,285 

Pension Obligation Bonds amount allocated 

from governmental activities 
Principal 506,020 8,738 497,282 8,842 
Interest 2,746 37,521 37,569 2,698 

508,766 37,521 46,307 499,980 

Accumulated unpaid vacation 50,844 66,109 50,844 66, 109 66, 109 

Total business-type activ ities long-term 
obligations 10,242,370 4,660,309 1,014,466 13,888,213 $ 473,854 

Accrued interest payable 76,933 539,200 567,789 48,344 

Principal $ 10, 165,437 $ 4,121,109 $ 446,677 $ 13,839,869 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

7. Long-term obligations (continued) 

C. T he future maturities of govem mental activities long-term obligations are as follows: 

General Obligation General Obligation 
Fiscal Refunding Bonds Series 20 I 0 Refunding Bonds Series 2003 Pension Obligation Bonds OEDD 

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

20 13 $ 80,000 $ 27,750 $ 165,000 $ 6,188 $ 19,120 $ 84,440 $ 41 ,926 $ 43,439 
20 14 235 ,000 25,350 20,712 89,686 42, 177 41,920 
2015 250,000 18,300 20,325 93,493 42,450 40,3 17 
2016 265,000 10,800 21,180 99,475 47,748 38,6 19 
20 17 95,000 2,850 20,731 103,343 48,057 36,709 

2018-22 269,015 452,332 268,773 151 ,4 16 
2023-27 605,163 170,498 337,026 84,387 
2028-29 99, !51 6,792 158,606 10,883 

$ 925,000 $ 85,050 $ 165,000 $ 6,188 $ 1,075,397 $ 1,100,059 $ 986,763 $ 447,690 

Fiscal West Coast Bank Silver Falls SD Silver Falls SD Compensated Totals 

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Absences Principal Interest 

20 13 $ 42,534 $ 13,963 $ 95,287 $ 4,7 13 $ 2 1,462 $ 3,538 $ 176,867 $ 644,930 $ 181,297 
20 14 44,36 1 12,136 95,764 4,236 2 1,934 3,066 462,33 1 174,011 
20 15 46,267 10,23 1 96,243 3,757 22,4 17 2,583 479,723 166,660 
2016 48,233 8,265 96,724 3,276 22,910 2,090 503,446 160,874 
2017 50,325 6, 172 97,208 2,792 23,41 3 1,586 336,004 152,183 

2018-22 13,623 575 461 ,276 6,623 48,690 2,375 1,051,3 18 6 11,208 
2023-27 942,189 254,885 
2028-39 257,757 17,675 

$ 245,343 $ 5 1,342 $ 942,502 $ 25,397 $ 160,826 $ 15,238 $ 176,867 $ 4 ,677,698 $ 1,718,793 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

7. Long-term obligations (continued) 

8. 

D. The future maturities of business-type activities long-term obligations are as follows: 

Water Sewer Pension 
Fiscal Revenue Bond USDA Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds LOCAP Obligation Bonds 

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2013 $ 38,903 $ 82,953 $ 265,000 $ 312,33 1 $ 95,000 $ 157,810 $ 8,842 $ 39,046 
20 14 40,800 8 1,056 295,000 304,381 70,000 155,910 9,578 4 1,472 
20 15 42,789 79,067 295,000 295,531 85,000 154,5 10 9,398 43,233 
20 16 44,875 76,98 1 300,000 286,681 90,000 151 ,960 9,794 45,999 
20 17 47,063 74,794 265,000 277,681 135,000 149,260 9,587 47,787 

20 18-22 272,049 337,233 1,230,000 1,248,630 1,005,000 657,903 124,397 209, 165 
2023-27 345, 148 264, 133 1,450,000 990,455 1,255,000 445,503 279,837 78,84 1 
2028-32 437,890 17 1,39 1 I ,780,000 651,575 1,220,000 143 ,290 45,849 3,140 
2033-36 43 1,961 53,804 I ,740,000 205,8 16 

$ 1,701 ,478 $ 1,221,4 12 $ 7,620,000 $ 4,573,081 $3,955,000 $2,016, 146 $ 497,282 $ 508,683 

Accumulated 
Fiscal Unpaid Totals 

Year Vacation Principal Interest 

20 13 $ 66,109 $ 473,854 $ 592, 140 
2014 4 15,378 582,8 19 
20 15 432, 187 572,34 I 
2016 444,669 561,621 
20 17 456,650 549,522 

2018-22 2,631,446 2,452,93 1 
2023-27 3,329,985 1,778,932 
2028-32 3,483,739 969,396 
2033-36 2, 17 1,96 1 259,620 

$ 66, 109 $ 13,839,869 $ 8,3 19,322 

Defined benefit pension plan 

The City contributes to the Oregon Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS); a cost-sharing, 
multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan and the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan 
(OPSRP); a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, hybrid pension plan. Both PERS and OPSRP are governed 
by the Public Employees ' Retirement Board (PERB) under the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes 
238. PERS provides retirement benefits under a variety of benefit options, as selected by retiring 
employees, and provides death and disability benefits. OPSRP provides a combination of retirement 
benefits under a defined benefit plan and an individual account program (lAP), the balance of which will 
be paid out in either a lump sum or over a 5, 10, 15, or 20 year period. Employees hired on or after 
August 29, 2003, participate only in OPSRP. Beginning January I, 2004, active PERS members hired 
before August 29, 2003, became members of the IAP of OPSRP. These members retain their existing 
PERS account; however, any future member contributions will be placed in the IAP. A copy of the 
Oregon Public Employees' Retirement System annual financial report may be obtained by writing to 
Public Employees' Retirement System, P.O. Box 23700, Tigard, OR 97281-3700, by calling (503) 598-
7377 or at www.oregon.gov/PERS. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

8. Defined benefit pension plan (continued) 

City employees are eligible to participate after completing six months of service. Covered employees are 
required by state statute to contribute 6 percent of their compensation to the plan. Current law permits 
the City to pay this amount on behalf of the employees. The City's contribution rate is set by PERB and 
is periodically adjusted based upon actuarial computations of the amount needed to provide retirement 
benefits. Effective July 1, 2009 the City elected to have the contribution rate for employees hired before 
August 29, 2003 split by employee class. The City's contribution rate for general service employees is 
9.52 percent of covered compensation and City's contribution rate for police officers is 17.8 percent of 
covered compensation. For employees hired on or after August 29, 2003, the City's contribution rate for 
police officers is 11.2 percent of covered compensation and 8.49 percent of covered compensation for all 
other employees. 

The City's contribution to the plan for the years ending June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010, were equal to the 
City 's required contributions for each year as follows: 

Year Ended City Member paid 
June 30 Contribution Contribution Totals 

2012 $ 317,094 $ 157,835 $ 474,929 
2011 211 ,625 165,994 377,619 
2010 193,793 154,745 348,538 

9. Net assets restricted through enabling legislation 

The amount of net assets restricted by enabling legislation is as follows: 
Governmental Activities 

Capital Projects - Ordinances imposing System Development Charges (SDC) 
and Local Improvement District (LID) assessments restrict the use to capital 
improvements which expand the capacity of the system for which the 
charge was made $ 1,281 ,718 

Highways and streets - Article IX, Section 3a of the Oregon State Constitution 
restricts the use of revenue from taxes on motor vehicle fuel use 307,760 

Business-type Activities 
Capital Projects - Ordinances imposing System Development Charges (SDC) 
restrict the use to capital improvements which expand the capacity of the system 
for which the charge was made 1,138,191 

10. Segment information for Enterprise Funds 

The City has issued revenue bonds to finance sewer and water systems. The two systems are 
accounted for in eight funds. 

Summary financial information for the sewer and water systems for the year ended June 30, 2012 is as 
follows: 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

10. Segment information for Enterprise Funds (continued) 

Condensed statement of net assets Sewer Water 

Assets 

Current $ 5,942,256 $ 1,839,636 

Noncurrent 21,948,8 13 8,330,232 

Total assets 27,891,069 10,169,868 

Liabilities 

Current 7 15,536 216,696 

Noncurrent 11,215,000 1,662,575 

Total liabilities 11,930,536 1 879 27 1 

Net assets 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 10,326,270 6,628,754 

Restricted 4,336,351 1 ' 129,446 
Unrestricted 1,297,912 532 397 

Total net assets $ 15,960,533 $ 8,290,597 

Condensed statement of revenues, expenses and 

changes in fund net assets 
Operating revenue $ 2,421,016 $ 1,533,829 

Depreciation expense 485,585 282,960 
Other operating expenses 1,082,185 839,329 

Operating in~ome 853,246 411,540 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) (326,868) {31, 168) 

Income before transfers 526,378 380,372 

Transfers in 5,625,190 25,259 

Transfers out (5,832,879) (512,829) 

Change in net assets 318,689 ( 107,198) 

Net assets- beginning 15,641,844 8 397 795 

Net assets - ending $ 15,960.533 $ 8,290,597 

Condensed statement of cash flows 

Net cash provided by (used in): 

Operating activities $ 1,498,034 $ 702,1 11 

Non-capital financing act ivities (228,202) (487,570) 

Capital and related financing activities 2,462,128 (101,869) 
Investing activities 28,636 8, 199 

Net increase in cash 3,760,596 120,87 1 

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 1,909,090 1,489,448 

Cash and cash equivalents- ending $ 5,669,686 $ 1,610,319 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

10. Segment information for Enterprise Funds (continued) 

Condensed statement of cash flows (continued) Sewer Water 

Supplementary disclosure of non-cash transactions 
Transfers in $ 4,782,643 $ 25,259 
Transfers out { 4, 762, 130) {25,259) 

Total non-cash transfers $ 20,5 13 $ 

11. Contingencies - accumulated sick leave 

Portions of sick leave accumulated at any point in time can be expected to be redeemed before 
termination of employment; however, such redemptions cannot be reasonably estimated. As of June 
30, 2012, City employees had accumulated 1,803 days of sick leave. 

12. Risk management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
torts; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City purchases 
commercial insurance for such risks of loss. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not 
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

13. Net assets - reserved 

As required by agreement with the U. S. Department of Agriculture, Rural Utilities Services the City 
has reserved a portion of the net assets in the Water Fund for future debt service, as follows: 

Water 
Sewer 

14. Construction commitment 

$ 
$ 

121 ,856 
599,38 1 

The City has entered into contracts with remaining commitments for construction, as follows: 

Waste Water Treatment 
Digester Plant 
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND 
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
GENERAL FUNDS 

June 30, 2012 

General 

Operating 

General Reserve Totals 

ASSETS 
Cash and investments $ I ,942,541 $ 540,008 $ 2,482,549 
Receivables 947,493 947,493 
Inventories 1,1 16 1, 116 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,891, 150 $ 540,008 $ 3,431,158 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued items $ 168,653 $ $ 168,653 
Consumer deposits 75,496 75,496 
Deferred revenue 772,3 13 772,313 

TOTA L LIABILITIES I ,0 16,462 1,0 16,462 

FU ND BALANCES 
Nonspendable I, 11 6 1, 11 6 
Assigned 540,008 540,008 
Unassigned I ,873,572 I ,873,572 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 1,874,688 540,008 2,414,696 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 2,89 1,150 $ 540,008 $ 3,43 1,158 
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CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GENERAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

General Operating 

General Reserve Totals 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 2, 190,555 $ $ 2, 190,555 

Franchise fees 506, 11 7 506, 11 7 

Licenses, pem1its and fees 89,977 89,977 

Fines and forfeitures 214,950 214,950 

Intergovernmental 225,177 225,177 

Rentals 8,022 8,022 

Interest 25,537 2,525 28,062 

Misce lhmeous 144,675 144,675 

TOTAL REVENUES 3,405,010 2,525 3,407,535 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 1,509,998 1,509,998 

Pub lic safety 2, 134,283 2,134,283 

Culture and recreation 367,764 367,764 

Capital outlay 11 5,508 115,508 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,127,553 4,127,553 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (722,543) 2,525 (720,018) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Sale of capital assets 3,500 3,500 

Transfers in 1,059,064 100,000 1,159,064 

Transfe rs out (365 , 157) (365,157) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 697,407 100,000 797,407 

Net change in fund balances (2 5, 136) 102,525 77,389 

Fund balances at beginning of year I ,899,824 437,483 2,337,307 

Fund balance at end of year $ 1,874,688 $ 540,008 $ 2,4 14 ,696 
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CITY OF SILVERTON 

GENERAL OPERATING RESERVE- GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGESINFUNDBALANCE-BUDGETTOACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Interest $ 1,500 $ 2,525 

EXPENDITURES 
Contingency 538,747 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (537,247) 2,525 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 100,000 100,000 

Net change in fund balance (437,247) 102,525 
Fund balance at beginning of year 437,247 437,483 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 540,00S 
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Variance 

$ 1,025 

538,747 

539,772 

539,772 
236 

$ 540,008 



ASSETS 
Cash and investments 
Receivables 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued items 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenue 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 
Building Operat ions 
Transportation 
Electrical Inspection 
Abatement 
Transient Tax 
CDBG Housing Rehab ili tation 
Capital projects 

Assigned for: 
Capital projects 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 

CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

June 30, 2012 

Special Revenue Debt Service 

$ 486,997 $ I ,393,364 $ 
777,074 562,444 

$ 1.264,071 $ 1,955,808 $ 

$ 38,843 $ 15,206 $ 
20,5 13 

700, I 28 482,476 

759.484 497,682 

1,458, I 26 
1,646 

47,555 
19,433 
29,58 1 
41 ,95 1 

364,42 I 

504,587 I ,458, I 26 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 1,264,07 1 $ 1,955,808 $ 
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Capital Projects Totals 

I ,958,622 $ 3,838,983 
1,198 1,340,7 16 

1,959,820 $ 5, I 79,699 

16,670 $ 70,7 19 
20,5 I 3 

I, I 82,604 

16,670 I ,273,836 

I ,458, I 26 
1,646 

4 7,555 
19,433 
29,58 1 
41,95 1 

364,42 I 
1,281,7 18 1,28 1,718 

661,432 66 1,432 

I ,943 , I 50 3,905,863 

1,959,820 $ 5, 179,699 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

COlVIBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

OTHER GOVERNNIENTAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Projects 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ $ 673,623 $ -
Transient tax 190,700 

Licenses and pem1its 85,051 125,180 
Assessments 149,238 
ln tergovemmental 50,414 37,227 
Loan repayments 12,964 

Interest 3,212 13,361 6,11 4 

Miscellaneous 5,388 8.492 

TOTAL REVENUES 347,729 836,222 177,013 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General govemment 355,096 2,951 

Debt service 732,325 
Capital outlay 327, 133 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 355,096 735,276 327.133 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (7,367) 100,946 ( 150.120) 

OTHER fiNANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in 146,452 120,782 

Transfers out ( 118,730) (17! ,979) (94,052) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCfNG SOURCES (USES) ( I 18,730) (25,52 7) 26,730 

Net change in fund balances ( 126,097) 75,419 ( 123,390) 
Fund balances at beginning of year 630,684 I ,382,707 2,066.540 

Fund balances at end of year $ 504,587 $ I ,458,126 $ 1,943, 150 
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Totals 

$ 673,623 
190,700 
2 10,231 
149,238 
87,641 
12,964 
22,687 
!3,880 

1,360,964 

358,047 
732,325 
327. 133 

1.417,505 

(56,54 1) 

267,234 
(384,761) 

( 11 7,527) 

( 174,068) 
4,079.931 

$ 3,905,863 



ASSETS 
Cash and investments 
Receivables 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued items 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenue 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted 

CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

June 30, 2012 

Bui lding Operations TransEo11ation 

$ 8,836 $ 36,481 
12,81 3 

$ 8,836 $ 49,294 

$ 7,190 $ 1,739 

7,190 1,739 

1,646 47,555 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 8,836 $ 49,294 
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Electrical 

Inspection 

$ 20,645 

$ 20,645 

$ 1,2 12 

I ,2 12 

19,433 

$ 20,645 



Community 

Development Block 
Grant Housing 

Abatement Transient Tax Rehabi I itation Totals 

$ 22,395 $ 36,020 $ 362,620 $ 486,997 
7, 186 55, 146 70 1,929 777,074 

$ 29,58 1 $ 9 1,166 $ 1,064,549 $ 1,264,07 1 

$ $ 28,702 $ $ 38,843 
20,5 13 20,513 

700,128 700,128 

49,2 15 700,128 759,484 

29,581 41 ,95 1 364,42 1 504,587 

$ 29,581 $ 91 , 166 $ 1,064,549 $ 1,264 ,07 1 
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CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Building 

Operations Transportation 

REVENUES 
Transient tax $ - $ -

Licenses, pem1its and fees 66,888 
Intergoverrunental 1,580 48,834 
Loan repayments 
Interest 211 238 
Miscellaneous 162 5,226 

TOTAL REVENUES 68,841 54,298 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 135,273 56,566 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (66,432) (2 ,268) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (20,839) (2 1' 198) 

Net Change in fund balances (87,271) (23,466) 
Fund balances at beginning of year 88 ,917 71,021 

Fund balances at end of year $ 1,646 $ 47,555 
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Electrical 

Inspection 

$ 
14,049 

142 

14,191 

22,954 

(8,763) 

(8,494) 

(17,257) 
36,690 

$ 19,433 



Abatement Transient Tax 

$ - $ 190,700 $ 
4,114 

110 178 

4,224 190,878 

2,057 125,791 

2,167 65,087 

(63 ,163) 

2, 167 1,924 
27,4 14 40,027 

$ 29,581 $ 41,951 $ 

Conununity 

Development 

Block Grant 

Housing 

Rehabilitation 

-

12,964 
2,333 

15,297 

12,455 

2,842 

(5,036) 

(2,194) 
366,6 15 

364,421 

$ 

$ 

40 

Totals 

190,700 
85,051 
50,414 
12,964 
3,212 
5,388 

347,729 

355,096 

(7,367) 

(118,730) 

( 126,097) 
630,684 

504,587 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

June 30, 2012 

Bonded Debt Debt Urban 
Service Service Assessment Renewa l Totals 

ASSETS 
Cash and investments $ 34,833 $ 11,541 $ 750,27 1 $ 596,7 19 $ I ,3 93,364 
Rece ivables 21,382 5 13,795 27,267 562,444 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 56,215 $ 11 ,541 $ 1,264,066 $ 623 ,986 $ I ,955,808 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued items $ $ $ 14,993 $ 213 $ 15,206 
DefeiTed revenue 17,724 444,071 20,681 482,476 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 17,724 459,064 20,894 497,682 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted for debt service 38,491 II,54I 805,002 603,092 1,458, I26 

TOTAL LIABILI TIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 56,2 I5 $ II ,54I $ I ,264,066 $ 623,986 $ 1,955,808 
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CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

DEBT SERVICE F UNDS 
For tbe Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Bonded Debt Debt Urban 

Service Service Assessment Renewal 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 305,448 $ $ - $ 368, 175 
Assessments 149,238 
Interest 1.609 771 4, 183 6.798 

TOTAL REVENUES 307,057 771 153,42 1 374,973 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 2,951 
Debt service 271,999 146,447 183,105 130,774 

TOTAL EXP ENDITURES 271,999 146,447 183,105 133,725 

Excess (dificiency) of revenues over expenditures 35,058 (145,676) (29.684) 241 ,248 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 146,452 
Transfer out (171,979) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCIJ G SOURCES (USES) (25,527) 

Net change in fund balances 35,058 (171,203) (29,684) 241,248 
Fund balances at beginning of year 3,433 182,744 834,686 361,844 

Fund balances at end of year $ 38.49 1 $ 11,54 1 $ 805,002 $ 603,092 
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Totals 

$ 673,623 
149,238 
13.361 

836,222 

2,95 1 
732,325 

735,276 

100.946 

146,452 
(171.979) 

(25,527) 

75,419 
1,382,707 

$ 1,458, 126 



ASSETS 
Cash and investments 
Receivables 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and 
accrued items 

FUND BALANCE 
Restricted 
Assigned 

TOTALFUNDBALANCE 

CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
June 30, 2012 

Building 

Capital Dam Early 

Improvement Warning 

Reserve System 

$ 356,986 $ 239,743 

$ 356,986 $ 239,743 

$ $ 

356,986 239,743 

356,986 239,743 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES $ 356,986 $ 239,743 
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Steelhammer 

LID 

$ 250,133 

$ 250,133 

$ 

250,133 

250,133 

$ 250,133 



Street Storm Water 

Improvement Improvement Street Lights 

SDC soc Improvement 

$ 66,282 $ 566,429 $ 64,703 

$ 66,282 $ 566,429 $ 64,703 

$ 11 ,046 $ 2,455 $ ----

55,236 563,974 
64,703 

55,236 563,974 64,703 

Parks and 

Recreation Street 

Improvement Reimbursement 

soc soc 

$ 363,11 3 $ 51,233 
1,198 

$ 364,31 1 $ 51,233 

$ 3,169 $ -----

361, 142 51,233 

36 1,142 51,233 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Totals 

1,958,622 

1 '198 

1,959,820 

16,670 

1,28 1,718 
66 1,432 

1 ,943, 150 

$ 66,282 $ 566,429 $ 64,703 $ 364,3 11 $ 51,233 $ 1,959,820 
======== ========= 
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REVENUES 

CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Building 
Capital 

Improvement 
Reserve 

Dam Early 
Waming 
System 

Steelhammer 
LID 

Liscenses, pennits and fees 
Intergovenunental 

$ - $ 
1,672 

- $ 
1,242 1,296 

Interest 
Miscellaneous 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPE!\'DITURES 
Capital outlay 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Net change in fund balances 
Fund balances at beginning of year 

Fund balances at end of year $ 

45 

1,672 1,242 

210,361 

(208,689) ---'-I ,_24_2 

120,782 

120,782 

(87,907) 
444,893 

1,242 
238,501 

1,296 

1,296 

1,296 
248,837 

356,986 $ 239,743 $ 250,133 
~~~~-



Parks and 
Street Storm Water Recreation Street 

Senior Improvement Improvement Street Lights Improvement Reimbursement 
Center SDC SDC Improvement SDC SDC Totals 

$ - $ 63,285 $ 14,189 $ - $ 37,647 $ 10,059 $ 125,180 
3 1,8 19 1,198 37,227 

282 284 3,157 335 1,8 12 244 6,1 14 
7,022 1,470 8,492 

39, 123 63,569 17,346 335 42,1 27 10,303 177,013 

27,0 11 67,516 22,245 327,133 

39, 123 36,558 (50, 170) 335 19,882 10,303 (150,120) 

120,782 
(70,782) ( II ,635) ( II ,635) (94,052) 

(70,782) (I I ,635) (I 1 ,635) 26,730 

(3 1 ,659) 24,923 (61 ,805) 335 19,882 10,3 03 ( 123,390) 
3 1,659 30,313 625,779 64,368 341,260 40,930 2,066,540 

$ - $ 55,236 $ 563,974 $ 64,703 $ 36 1, 142 $ 51,233 $ I ,943, 150 
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CITY OF SILVERTON 

BUILDING OPERATIONS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Permits and fees $ 87,660 $ 66,888 
Intergovernmental 3,500 1,580 
Interest 500 211 
Miscellaneous 1,000 162 

TOTAL REVENUES 92,660 68,841 

EXPENDITURES 
Personal services 134,482 120,071 
Materials and services 14,075 15,202 
Contingency 15,165 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 163,722 135,273 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (71,062) (66,432) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 24,000 
Transfers out (47,935) (20,839) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (23,935) (20,839) 

Net change in fund balance (94,997) (87,271) 
Fund balance at beginning of year 94,997 88,917 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 1,646 
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Variance 

$ (20,772) 
(1 ,920) 

(289) 
(838) 

(23,819) 

14,411 
(1,127) 
15,165 

28,449 

4 630 

(24,000) 
27,096 

3,096 

7,726 
(6,080) 

$ 1,646 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

TRANSPORTATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental $ 103,659 $ 48,834 
Interest 100 238 
Miscellaneous 3,500 5,226 

TOTAL REVENUES 107,259 54,298 

EXPENDITURES 
Personal services 51,242 45,552 
Materials and services 24,850 11 ,01 4 
Contingency 92,270 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 168,362 56,566 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (61, 103) (2,268) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (21,198) (2 1,198) 

Net change in fund balance (82,301) (23,466) 
Fund balance at beginning of year 82,301 71,021 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 47,555 
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Variance 

$ (54,825) 
138 

1,726 

(52,96 1) 

5,690 
13,836 
92,270 

111 ,796 

58,835 

58,835 
(11 ,280) 

$ 47,555 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

ELECTRICAL INSPECTION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Licenses, permits and fees $ 12,000 $ 14,049 
Interest 250 142 

TOTAL REVENUES 12,250 14,191 

EXPENDITURES 
Personal services 23,750 15,202 
Materials and services 8,825 7,752 
Contingency 1,3 16 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 33,891 22,954 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (2 1,64 1) (8,763) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (8,494) (8,494) 

Net change in fund balance (30, 135) (17,257) 
Fund balance at beginning of year 30,135 36,690 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 19,433 
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Variance 

$ 2,049 
(I 08) 

1,941 

8,548 
1,073 
1,3 16 

10,937 

12,878 

12,878 
6,555 

$ 19,433 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

ABATEMENT- SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 

Licenses, permits and fees $ 2,000 $ 4,114 

Interest 75 110 

TOTAL REVENUES 2,075 4,224 

EXPENDITURES 
Materials and services 28,576 2,057 

Net change in fund balance (26,501) 2,167 

Fund balance at beginning ofyear 26,501 27,414 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 29,581 
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Variance 

$ 2,114 
35 

2,149 

26,519 

28,668 
913 

$ 29,581 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

TRANSIENT TAX - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Transient room tax $ 142,165 $ 190,700 
Interest 50 178 

TOTAL REVENUES 142,215 190,878 

EXPENDITURES 
Materials and services 112,435 125,791 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 29,780 65,087 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (42,650) (63, 163) 

Net change in fund balance (12,870) 1,924 
Fund balance at beginning of year 12,870 40,027 

Fund balance at end ofyear $ $ 41,951 
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Variance 

$ 48,535 
128 

48,663 

(13,356) 

35,307 

(20,513) 

14,794 
27,157 

$ 41,951 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
HOUSING REHABILITATION FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Loan repayments $ 5,324 $ 12,964 $ 

Interest 2,000 2,333 

TOTAL REVENUES 7,324 15,297 

EXPENDITURES 
Materials and services 180,000 12,455 
Contingency and reserves 127,975 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 307,975 12,455 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (300,651) 2,842 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (5,036) (5,036) 

Net change in fund balance (305,687) (2, 194) 
Fund balance at beginning of year 305,687 366,6 15 

Fund balance at end ofyear $ $ 364,421 $ 
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Variance 

7,640 
333 

7,973 

167,545 
127,975 

295,520 

303,493 

303,493 
60,928 

364,42 1 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

BONDED DEBT SERVICE- DEBT SERVICE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGESINFUNDBALANCE - BUDGETTOACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 275,441 $ 305,448 
Interest 750 1,609 

TOTAL REVENUES 276,191 307,057 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service 272,000 271,999 

Net change in fund balance 4,191 35,058 
Fund balance at beginning of year (4, 191) 3,433 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 38,49 1 
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Variance 

$ 30,007 
859 

30,866 

30,867 
7,624 

$ 38,491 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

DEBT SERVICE - DEBT SERVICE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Interest $ 500 $ 771 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service 146,450 146,447 
Contingency 10,000 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 156,450 146,447 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (155,950) (145,676) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 146,452 146,452 
Transfers out (171,979) (171 ,979) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (25,527) (25,527) 

Net change in fund balance (181,477) (171,203) 
Fund balance at beginning of year 181 ,477 182,744 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 11,541 
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Variance 

$ 271 

3 
10,000 

10,003 

10,274 

10,274 
1,267 

$ 11 ,54 1 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

ASSESSMENT- DEBT SERVICE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Assessments $ 93,400 $ 149,238 
Interest 3,500 4,183 

TOTAL REVENUES 96,900 153,421 

EXPENDITURES 
Materials and services 4,000 
Debt service 183,610 183,105 
Contingency 733,749 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 921 ,359 183,105 

Net change in fund balance (824,459) (29,684) 
Fund balance at beginning of year 824,459 834,686 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 805,002 
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Variance 

$ 55,838 
683 

56,521 

4,000 
505 

733,749 

738,254 

794,775 
10,227 

$ 805,002 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

URBAN RENEWAL - DEBT SERVICE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 316,041 $ 368,175 
Interest 2,250 6,798 

TOTAL REVENUES 3 18,291 374,973 

EXPENDITURES 
Materials and services 5,100 2,951 
Debt service 289,684 285,574 
Capital outlay 467,220 
Contingency 50,000 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 812,004 288,525 

Net change in fund balance (493,713) 86,448 
Fund balance at beginning of year 493,713 516,644 

Fund balance at end of year $ 603,092 
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Variance 

$ 52,134 
4,548 

56,682 

2,149 
4,110 

467,220 
50,000 

523,479 

580,161 
22,931 

$ 603,092 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

BUILDING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT RESERVE - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Interest $ 1,800 $ 1,672 $ (128) 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay 241 ,658 210,361 31,297 
Contingency 382,394 382,394 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 624,052 210,36 1 413,691 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (622,252) (208,689) 413,563 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 154,690 120,782 (33,908) 

Net change in fund balance (467,562) (87,907) 379,655 
Fund balance at beginning of year 467,562 444,893 (22,669) 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 356,986 $ 356,986 
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CITY OF SILVERTON 

DAM EARLY \V ARNING SYSTEM - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Interest $ 100 $ 1,242 $ 1 '142 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 227,500 227,500 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (227,400) 1,242 228,642 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (10,823) 10,823 

Net change in fund balance (238,223) 1,242 239,465 
Fund balance at beginning of year 238,223 238,501 278 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 239,743 $ 239,743 
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CITY OF SILVERTON 

STEEL HAMMER LID - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
lnterest $ 1,000 $ 1,296 

EXPENDITURES 
Contingency 249,827 

Net change in fund balance (248,827) 1,296 
Fund balance at beginning of year 248,827 248,837 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 250,133 
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Variance 

$ 296 

249,827 

250,123 
10 

$ 250,133 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

SENIOR CENTER- CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental $ $ 31 ,8 19 
Interest 282 
Miscellaneous 7,022 

TOTAL REVENUES 39,123 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (104,690) (70, 782) 

Net change in fund balance (104,690) (31 ,659) 
Fund balance at beginning of year 104,690 31,659 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 
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Variance 

$ 31,819 
282 

7,022 

39,123 

33,908 

73,031 
(73,031) 

$ 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

STREET IMPROVEMENT SOC- CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

REVENUES 
Licenses, pennits and fees $ 
Intergovernmental 
Interest 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay 
Contingency 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Net change in fund balance 
Fund balance at beginning of year 

Budget 

45,988 
303,774 

200 

349,962 

353,274 
42,079 

395,353 

(45,391) 

25,000 
(21 ,635) 

3,365 

(42,026) 
42,026 

$ 

Actual 

63,285 

284 

63,569 

27,011 

27,011 

36,558 

(1 1 ,635) 

(11,635) 

24,923 
30,313 

$ 

Variance 

17,297 
(303,774) 

84 

(286,393) 

326,263 
42,079 

368,342 

8 1,949 

(25,000) 
10,000 

(15,000) 

66,949 
(11,713) 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 5 5,23 6 =$ ==5=5==,2=3=6 

6 1 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

STORM "VATER IMPROVEMENT SDC - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended J une 30, 2012 

Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Licenses, pennits and fees $ 17,544 $ 14, 189 $ (3,355) 
Interest 3,000 3, 157 157 

TOTAL REVENUES 20,544 17,346 (3, 198) 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay 72,686 67,516 5,170 
Contingency 555,91 1 555,9 11 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 628,597 67,516 561,08 1 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (608,053) (50, 170) 557,883 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (1 1 ,635) (11 ,635) 

Net change in fund balance (619,688) (6 1 ,805) 557,883 
Fund balance at beginning of year 619,688 625,779 6,091 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 563,974 $ 563,974 

62 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

STREET LIGHTS IMPROVEMENT - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Interest $ 250 $ 33 5 $ 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay 39,6 18 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (39,368) 335 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (25,000) 

Net change in fund balance (64,3 68) 335 
Fund balance at beginning of year 64,368 64,368 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 64,703 $ 
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Variance 

85 

39,6 18 

39,703 

25,000 

64,703 

64,703 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

PARKS AND RECREATION IMPROVEMENTS SDC- CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Licenses, permits and fees $ 49,872 $ 37,647 $ ( 12,225) 
Intergovenunental 190,000 1,198 (188,802) 
Interest 1,150 1,8 12 662 
Miscellaneous 25,000 1,470 (23,530) 

TOTAL REVENUES 266,022 42,127 (223,895) 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay 472,686 22,245 450,44 1 
Contingency 148,900 148,900 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 62 1,586 22,245 599,341 

Net change in fund balance (355,564) 19,882 375,446 
Fund balance at beginning of year 355,564 341,260 (14,304) 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 361,142 $ 361 ,142 
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CITY OF SILVERTON 

STREET REIMBURSEMENT SDC- CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Licenses, petmits and fees $ 5,556 $ 10,059 $ 
Interest 100 244 

TOTAL REVENUES 5,656 10,303 

EXPENDITURES 
Contingency 45,653 

Net change in fund balance (39,997) 10,303 
Fund balance at beginning of year 39,997 40,930 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 51 ,233 $ 
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Vari ance 

4,503 
144 

4,647 

45,653 

50,300 
933 

51,233 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

SEWER- ENTERPRlSE FUND (A MAJOR FUND) 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Charges for seiVices $ 2,404,804 $ 2,421,016 
Interest 2,500 5,056 
Other 9,623 

TOTAL REVENUES 2,407,304 2,435,695 

EXPENDITURES 
Personal services 690,566 645,528 
Materials and services 555,780 446,833 
Capital outlay 58,700 44,081 
Debt service 825,528 795,459 
Contingency 133,535 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,264,109 1,931,901 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 143,195 503,794 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (1 ,047,479) (1,047,479) 

Net change in fu nd balance (904,284) (543,685) 
Fund balance at beginning of year 904,284 967,451 

Fund balance at end of year $ 423,766 

Reconciliation to generally accepted accounting principles 
Bond premium and issuance costs, net 47,543 
Capita l assets, net 21,90 1,270 
Accrued interest payable (38,828) 
Long-term ob ligations ( 11 ,575,000) 

Net assets at end of year $ 10,758,75 1 
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Variance 

$ 16,212 
2,556 
9,623 

28,391 

45 ,038 
108,947 

14,619 
30,069 

133,535 

332,208 

360,599 

360,599 
63, 167 

$ 423 ,766 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

WATER- ENTERPRISE FUND (A MAJOR FUND) 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Charges for services $ 1,528,000 $ 1,533,829 
Interest 1,200 2,977 
Other 2,700 2,339 

TOTAL REVENUES 1,53 1,900 1,539,145 

EXPENDITURES 
Personal services 514,885 497,80 1 
Materials and services 365,630 331,490 
Capital outlay 38,700 7,910 
Debt service 121 ,860 121,856 
Contingency 559,108 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1 ,600,183 959,057 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (68,283) 580,088 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 10,823 
Transfers out (464,300) (464,300) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (453 ,477) (464,300) 

Net change in fund balance (521 ,760) 115,788 
Fund balance at beginning of year 52 1,760 545,283 

Fund balance at end of year $ 661,071 

Reconciliation to generally accepted accounting principles 
Capital assets, net 8,330,232 
Accrued interest payable (6,818) 
Long-term obligations (1,701,478) 

Net assets at end of year $ 7,283,007 
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Variance 

$ 5,829 
1,777 
(361) 

7,245 

17,084 
34, 140 
30,790 

4 
559,108 

64 1,126 

648,37 1 

(10,823) 

(10,823) 

637,548 
23,523 

$ 661,071 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

W\VTP DIGESTER PROJECT - ENTERPRISE FUND (A MAJOR FUND) 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended J une 30,2012 

Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Interest $ 2,500 $ 20,61 8 $ 18,118 
Miscellaneous 900 900 

TOTAL REVENUES 2,500 21 ,51 8 19,018 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay 4,908, 156 819,666 4,088,490 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (4,905,656) (798,148) 4,107,508 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from long-term debt 4,000,000 4,067,446 67,446 

Net change in fund balance (905,656) 3,269,298 4,174,954 
Fund balance at beginning of year 905,656 936,452 30,796 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 4,205,750 $ 4,205,750 
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ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash and investments 
Due from other funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

NET ASSETS 
Restricted for capital projects 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
OTHER ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

June 30,2012 

Sewer Sewer Water 

Improve- Reimburse- Water Improve· Reimburse-

ment SOC ment SOC ment SOC ment SDC 

$ 102,465 $ 28,136 $ 90 I ,306 $ 106,284 

102,465 28,136 901 ,306 106,284 

102,465 28,136 901,306 106,284 

$ 102,465 $ 28,136 $ 901 ,306 $ 106,284 
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Sewer Debt 

Reserve Totals 

844,9 18 $ 1,983,109 
20,513 20,513 

865,43 1 2,003,622 

1,138, 191 
865,431 865,431 

$ 865,431 $ 2,003,622 



OPERATING EXPENSES 
Materials and services 

Operating (loss) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES 
(EXPENSES) 

System development charges 
Interest 

CITY OF SILVERT ON 

COMBINI NG STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

OTHER ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Sewer Sewer Water Water 

Improvement Reimburse- Improvement Reimburse-

SDC ment SDC SDC ment SDC 

$ $ $ 2, 128 $ 

(2, 128) 

31 ,868 21 ,673 25,893 17,014 
474 11 7 4,691 53 1 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses 32,342 2 1,790 30,584 17,545 

Income before transfers 32,342 21,790 28,456 17,545 

TRANSFERS 
Transfers in 
Transfers out (1 1,635) (11 ,635) (36, ~94) (11 ,635) 

Total trans fers (11 ,635) ( 11,635) (36,894) (1 1,635) 

Change in net assets 20,707 10,155 (8,438) 5,910 
Total net assets at begi rll1ing of year 8 1,758 17,98 1 909,744 100,374 

Tota l net assets at end of year $ 102,465 $ 28, 136 $ 901,306 $ 106,284 
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Sewer Debt 

Reserve Totals 

$ $ 2,128 

(2, 128) 

96,448 
2,371 8,184 

2,371 104,632 

2,371 102,504 

863,060 863,060 
(71 ,799) 

863,060 791,261 

865,431 893,765 
1,109,857 

$ 865,43 1 $ 2,003,622 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
OTHER ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

For the Year Ended June 30,20 12 

Sewer Sewer Water 
Improvement Reimbursement Improvement 

SDC SDC soc 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES 

Payments to suppliers $ $ $ (2,253) 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPIT AL FINAi\fCING 
ACTIVITIES 

Transfers in 
Transfers out (11 ,635) (11 ,635) (11 ,635) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) NON CAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (11,635) (11 ,635) (11 ,635) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

System development charges received 31,868 21,673 25,893 

Other 
Acquisition of capital assets (25,259) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY CAPITAL 
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 31,868 21 ,673 634 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest on investments 474 117 4,691 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 20,707 10,155 (8,563) 
Cash - beginning of year 81,758 17,98 1 909,869 

Cash - end of year $ 102,465 $ 28,136 $ 901,306 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income (loss) $ $ $ (2, 128) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued items (125) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ $ $ (2,253) 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF 
NON-CASH TRAl'lSACTIONS 

Transfers in $ $ $ 

Transfers out $ $ $ (25 ,259) 
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Water Sewer 
Reimbursement Debt 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

soc Reserve 

$ 

842,547 

( 11 ,635) ---

(1 1 ,635) 842,54 7 

$ 

$ 

Totals 

$ (2,253) 

842,547 
(46,540) 

796,007 

$ (2,128) 

(125) 

$ (2,253) 

$ 20,513 $ 

$ $ 

20,5 13 

(25,259) 
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CITY OF SILVERTON 

SE\VER IMPROVEMENT SOC - ENTERPRISE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
System development charges $ 32,040 $ 31,868 
Interest 300 474 

TOTAL REVENUES 32,340 32,342 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay 15,000 
Contingency 87,7 11 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 102,7 11 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (70,371) 32,342 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (11,635) (11 ,63 5) 

Net change in fund balance (82,006) 20,707 
Fund balance at beginning of year 82,006 81,758 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 102,465 
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Variance 

$ (172) 
174 

2 

15,000 
87,711 

102,711 

102,713 

102,713 
(248) 

$ 102,465 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

SE\<VER REIMBURSEMENT SDC- ENTERPRISE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
System development charges $ 22,020 $ 21,673 
Interest 40 117 

TOTAL REVENUES 22,060 21,790 

EXPENDITURES 
Contingency 28,397 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (6,337) 21,790 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (11 ,635) (11 ,635) 

Net change in fund balance (17,972) 10,155 
Fund balance at beginning of year 17,972 17,98 1 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 28, 136 
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Variance 

$ (347) 
77 

(270) 

28,397 

28,127 

28,127 
9 

$ 28,136 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

WATERIMPROVEMENTSDC-ENTERPruSEFUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
System development charges $ 29,124 25,893 
Interest 3,500 4,691 

TOTAL REVENUES 32,624 30,584 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay 743,600 27,387 
Contingency 159,111 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 902,71 1 27,387 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (870,087) 3,197 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (25,635) (11 ,635) 

Net change in fund balance (895,722) (8,438) 
Fund balance at beginning of year 895,722 909,744 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 90 1,306 
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Variance 

$ (3,231) 

1' 191 

(2,040) 

716,213 
159, 111 

875,324 

873,284 

14,000 

887,284 
14,022 

$ 901 ,306 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

\VATER REIMBURSEMENT SDC - ENTERPRISE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
System development charges $ 20,436 $ 17,014 
Interest 300 531 

TOTAL REVENUES 20,736 17,545 

EXPENDITURES 
Contingency 107,775 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (87,039) 17,545 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (11 ,635) (11,635) -

Net change in fund balance (98,674) 5,910 
Fund balance at beginning of year 98,674 100,374 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 106,284 

76 

Variance 

$ (3,422) 
231 

(3 , 191) 

107,775 

104,584 

104,584 
1,700 

$ 106,284 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

SEWER DEBT RESERVE - ENTERPRISE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Interest $ $ 2,371 

EXPENDITURES 
Contingency 842,547 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (842,547) 2,371 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 842,547 863 ,060 

Net change in fund balance 865,431 
Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 865,431 
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Variance 

$ 2,371 

842,547 

844,918 

20,513 

865,431 

$ 865,431 



ASSETS 
Cunent assets 

CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

June 30, 2012 

Major 

Fleet Equipment Extended 

Replacement Replacement Leave 

Cash and cash investments $ 641 ,261 $ 709,886 $ 111 ,387 
Accounts receivable 3, 150 

TOTAL ASSETS 644,4 11 709,886 11 1,387 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted $ 644,4 11 $ 709,886 $ 111,387 
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Totals 

$ 1,462,534 
3, 150 

1,465,684 

$ 1,465,684 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHAt'lGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Major 

Fleet Equipment Extended 

Replacement Replacement Leave Totals 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest $ 3,336 $ 3,634.00 $ 574.00 $ 7,544 
Sale of capital assets 3,594 3,594 

Income before transfers 6,930 3,634 574 11 ,138 

TRANSFERS 
Transfers in 104,894 106,883 8,788 220,565 
Transfers out (23,468) (23,468) 

Total transfers 81,426 106,883 8,788 197,097 

Change in net assets 88,356 110,5 17 9,362 208,235 
Total net assets at beginning of year 556,055 599,369 102 ,025 1,257,449 

Total net assets at end of year $ 644,4 11 $ 709,886 $ 11 1,387 $ 1,465 ,684 
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CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
INTERt~AL SERVICE FUNDS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Major 

Fleet Equipment Extended 

Replacement Replacement Leave Totals 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Transfers in 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCll~G ACTIVITIES 

Acquisition of capital assets 

Increase in receivable related to sale 

Sale of capital assets 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) CAPITAL 

AND RELATED FINANCING ACTNITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 

Interest on inves tments 

Net increase in cash 

Cash - beginning of year 

Cash - end of year 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF 
NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 

Transfers out 

80 

$ 104,894 $ 106,883 $ 8,788 $ 220,565 

(23,468) 

(3, !50) 

3,594 

(23,024) 

3,336 

85,206 

556,055 

3,634 

110,5 17 

599,369 

574 

9,362 

102,025 

(23,468) 

(3, !50) 

3,594 

(23,024) 

7,544 

205,085 

1,257,449 

$ 641,261 $ 709,886 $ 111 ,387 $ 1,462,534 

$ 23,468 ~$=== $ $ 23 ,468 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

FLEET REPLACEMENT- INTERL'\TAL SERVICE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Interest $ 1,800 $ 3,336 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay 25,300 23,468 
Contingency 639,699 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 664,999 23,468 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (663,199) (20,132) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 107,419 104,894 
Sale of capital assets 3,594 

TOAL OTHER FrNANCfNG SOURCES (USES) 107,419 108,488 

Net change in fund balance (555,780) 88,356 
Fund balance at beginning of year 555,780 556,055 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 644,411 
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Vatiance 

$ 1,536 

1,832 
639,699 

641 ,53 1 

643,067 

(2,525) 
3,594 

1,069 

644,136 
275 

$ 644,411 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

MAJOR EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT- INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Interest $ 2,500 $ 3,634 $ 1,134 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay 50,000 50,000 
Contingency 658,532 658,532 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 708,532 708,532 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (706,032) 3,634 709,666 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 106,883 106,883 

Net change in fund balance (599,149) 110,517 709,666 
Fund balance at beginning of year 599, 149 599,369 220 

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 709,886 $ 709,886 
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CITY OF SILVERTON 

EXTENDED LEAVE- INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Interest $ 450 $ 574 

EXPENDITURES 
Personal services 110,604 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (110,154) 574 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 8,888 8,788 

Net change in fund balance (101,266) 9,362 
Fund balance at beginning ofyear 101,266 102,025 

Fund balance at end ofyear $ $ 111,387 
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Variance 

$ 124 

110,604 

(110,480) 

(100) 

110,628 
759 

$ 111 ,387 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
SEWER SYSTEM FUNDS 

June 30, 2012 and 2011 

2012 

ASSETS 
CuJTent assets 

Cash and investments $ 5,669,686 
Receivables, net 244,506 
Due from other funds 20,513 
Inventories 7,551 

Total cuJTent assets 5,942,256 

Bond premium and issuance costs, net 47,543 
Capital assets, net 21,901 ,270 

TOTAL ASSETS 27,891 ,069 

LIABILITIES 
CuJTent liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued items 280,607 
Accrued interest payable 38,828 
Accumulated unpaid vacation 36,101 
Long-te1m obligations due within one year 360,000 

Total cuJTent liabilities 71 5,536 

Long-term obligations 11,215,000 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,930,536 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 10,326,270 
Restricted for: 

Capital projects 4,336,351 
Unrestricted 1,297,9 12 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 15,960,533 

84 

20 11 

$ 1,909,090 
226,043 

14,859 

2,149,992 

21,575,423 

23,725,415 

11 7,897 
67,221 
28,453 

250,000 

463,571 

7,620,000 

8,083,57 1 

13 ,705,423 

1,036, 19 1 
900,230 

$ 15,64 1,844 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

SE\tVER SYSTEM FUNDS 
For the Years Ended June 30,2012 and 2011 

2012 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services $ 2,421 ,016 $ 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Personal services 645,528 
Materials and services 436,657 
Depreciation 485,585 

Total operating expenses 1,567,770 

Operating income 853,246 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
System development charges 53,541 
Interest 28,636 
Miscellaneous 10,523 
Amortization (2,502) 
Interest (417,066) 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (326,868) 

Income before transfers 526,378 

TRANSFERS 
Transfers in 5,625,190 
Transfers out (5,832,879) 

Total transfers (207,689) 

Change in net assets 318,689 
Net assets at beginning of year 15,641 ,844 

Net assets at end of year $ 15,960,533 $ 

85 

201 1 

2,351,185 

617,097 
476,797 
479,078 

1,572,972 

778,213 

49,555 
11 ,720 

1,053 

(368,001) 

(305,673) 

472,540 

554,464 
(1,054,796) 

(500,332) 

(27,792) 
15,669,636 

15,641,844 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
WATER SYSTEM FUNDS 

June 30, 2012 and 2011 

2012 

ASSETS 
Cunent assets 

Cash and investments $ 1,610,3 19 
Receivables, net 146,318 
Inventories 82.999 

Total cutTent assets 1,839,636 

Capital assets, net 8,330,232 

TOTAL ASSETS 10,169,868 

LIABILITIES 
Cun·ent liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued items 74,077 
Consumer deposits 66,890 
Accrued interest payable 6,8 18 
Accumulated unpaid vacation 30,008 
Long-term obligations due within one year 38,903 

Total cunent liabilities 216,696 

Long-term obligations 1,662,575 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,879,271 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 6,628,754 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 121 ,856 
Other purposes 1,007,590 

Unrestricted 532,397 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 8,290,597 
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2011 

$ 1,489,448 
136,555 
97 205 

1,723,208 

8,587,933 

10,3 11 , 141 

75,737 
69,679 
6,966 

22,391 
37,095 

211,868 

1,701,478 

I ,913,346 

6,849,360 

121,856 
1,070,608 

355,971 

$ 8,397,795 



CITY OF SILVERTON 

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

\VATER SYSTEM FUNDS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

20 12 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services $ I ,533,829 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Personal services 497,801 
Materials and services 341,528 
Depreciation 282,960 

Total operating expenses l , 122,289 

Operating income 4 11 ,540 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
System development charges 42,907 
Interest 8,199 
Miscellaneous 2,339 
Interest (84,613) 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (31 '168) 

Income before transfers 380,372 

TRANSFERS 
Transfers in 25,259 
Transfers out (5 12,829) 

Total transfers ( 487,570) 

Change in net assets ( I 07, 198) 
Net assets at beginning of year 8,397,795 

Net assets at end of year $ 8,290,597 
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20 11 

$ 1,530,924 

478,64 1 
326,48 1 
282,960 

1,088,082 

442,842 

41,300 
7,395 
8,030 

(85,632) 

(28,907) 

413 ,93 5 

79,244 
(502,492) 

(423 ,248) 

(9,313) 
8,407,108 

$ 8,397,795 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT REQUIRED BY THE 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT REQUIRED BY THE 
MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR AUDITS OF OREGON MUNICIPAL CORPORATIONS 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
CITY OF SILVERTON 
Silverton, Oregon 

www.bcsllc.com 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the CITY OF SILVERTON as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated November 27, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of i ts compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administ rative Rules 
162-10-240 th rough 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, 
noncompliance wit h which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statements amounts. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such 
noncompliance. As such, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of 
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and 
disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following: 

Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295). 

• Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment. 

• Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294). 

• Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law. 

• Programs funded from outside sources. 

• Highway revenues used for public highways, roads, and streets. 

Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294). 

• Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C). 
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
CITY OF SILVERTON 
Silverton, Oregon 

In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the City was not in 
substan tial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the 
provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-240 through 162-10-
320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations except as follows: 

• The budget was executed in compliance with legal requirements, except as follows: 

o Disbursements in excess of appropriations (which is prohibited by ORS 294.435) were made in 
the following categories: 

Fund /Category 

Building Operations 
Materials and services 

Transient Tax 
Materials and services 

OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control 

Appropriation 

s 14,075 s 
112,435 

Actual 

15,202 s 
125,791 

Variance 

(1,127) 

(13,356) 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial report ing as a 
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financia l 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control 
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal 
control over financial reporting. However, we have separately issued a lett er to management describing 
deficiencies in internal controls. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors/council 
members/commissioners and management of the CITY OF SILVERTON and the Oregon Secretary of State and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these parties. 

89 



GRANT COMPLIANCE- YELLOW BOOK 



Boldt Carlisle +Smith I 

R- UdL AC' OUN AN 

The right people. The nght answers 

480 Church Street SE Salem Oregon 97301 P 503.585.7751 F 503.370.3781 
3211st Avenue E Suite 2A Albany Oregon 97321 P 541.928.6500 F 541 .928.6501 

408 N Third Avenue Stayton Oregon 97383 P 503.769.2186 F 503.769.4312 

www.bcsllc.com 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
CITY OF SILVERTON 
Silverton, Oregon 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of CITY OF SILVERTON as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our 
report thereon dated November 27, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting as 
a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Ci ty' s internal control over financial reporting. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
fi rst paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
financial report ing that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or mat erial weaknesses. We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficienci es, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses to be a 
material weakness (See Finding 2012-1 ). 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS (Continued) 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting (continued) 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal controls that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses 
to be a significant deficiency (See Finding 2012·2). 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's fi nancia l statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regu lat ions, contracts 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are requi red to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

The City's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying Schedule of 
Findings and Responses. We did not audit the City's responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on 
them. 

This report is intended for the information and use of management, City Council, others within the entity, 
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used 
by anyone other than these specified parties. 

~~ ~ \{._ ~~ LLC 

Certified Public Accountants 
Salem, Oregon 
November 27, 2012 
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CITY OF SILVERTON 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 
Year Ended June 30,2012 

Material Weaknesses 

2012-1 Segregation of duties over the initiation, posting, and review of all journal entries 

Criteria: 

Condition: 

Cause: 

Effect: 

Response: 

Adequate segregation of duties over the initiation, posting, and review of 
manual adjusting journal entries by the Finance Director, both routine and 
non-routine. 

The City's internal controls do not provide for adequate segregation of 
duties over the initiation, posting, and review of manual adj usting journal 
entries by the Finance Director, both routine and non-routine. 

The Finance Director records manual adj usting journal entries as needed, 
however there is no supervisory review of these journal entries. 

The Finance Director could post unauthorized journal entries. 

The weakness only exists related to manual entries by the Finance Director. 
Staff outside the Finance Department does review general ledger accounts 
they are responsible for and all staff have inquiry and report generation 
rights for the general ledger. Finance will begin to have a second person 
initial the journal before it is entered. 

Significant Deficiencies 

20 12-2 Segregation of duties over cash disbursements 

Cri teria: 

Condition: 

Cause: 

Effect: 

Response: 

Adequate segregation of duties over cash disbursements. 

The City's internal controls do not provide for adequate segregation of 
duties over cash disbursements. 

The cash disbursement process allows access to multiple levels of internal 
controls by an individual. This includes creating new vendors, coding and 
processing invoices for payments, printing of checks, custody of check 
stock and use ofthe signature stamp. 

The employee could print a check and use the signature stamp without 
authorization. 

The deficiency is caused by limitations on the City's resources . The 
Accounts Payable Clerk will no longer be allowed access to the signature 
stamps. 
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